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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board Members, Castlemaine Health

The Financial Report

The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2014 of Castlemaine Health
which comprises comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in
equiity, cash flow statement, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the Board Member's, Accountable Officer's and Chief
Finance and Accounting Officer's Declaration has been audited.

The Board Members’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Board Members of Castlemaine Health are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and
the financial reporting requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994, and for such
internal control as the Board Members determine is necessary to enable the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The audit procedures selected depend on judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal
control relevant {o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board Members, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial report.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion.

Auditing in the Public Interest




Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Independence

The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-
General is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and
responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staff and
delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting
profession.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Castlemaine Health as at 30 June 2014 and of its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, and
the financial reporting requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor's report relates to the financial report of Castlemaine Health for the year ended 30
June 2014 included both in Castlemaine Health's annual report and on the website. The Board
Members of Castlemaine Health are responsible for the integrity of the Castlemaine Health’s
website. | have not been engaged to report on the integrity of Castlemaine Health’'s website.
The auditor’s report refers only to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an
opinion on any other information which may have heen hyperlinked toffrom these statements.
If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on
a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm
the information contained in the website versicn of the financial report.

“xl A

MELBOURNE Dr Peter Frost
22 August 2014 Acting Auditor-General
2
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CASTLEMAINE HEALTH

BOARD MEMBER'S, ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER'S AND
CHIEF FINANCE AND AGCOUNTING OFFICER'S DECLARATION

The atteched financial staternents for Castlemaine Health have been prepared In accordance with
Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financlal Management Act 1894, applicable Financiat Reporting Dirastlons,
Australlan Accounting Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements.

Wo further state that, in our oplnion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Slatement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equily, Cash Flow Statement, and accompanying hotes,

presents faldy the financlal fransactlons dining the year ended 30 June 2014 and financial posttion
of Castlemaine Health at 30 June 2014, ‘

At the time of signing, wa ars not awars of any clrciimstance which would render any particulars included in the
financial repott to he misleading or inaccurate.

We authoise the altached financlal statements for issue or this day.

---------------------

Carolyn Wallacs lan Fisher Tracey Archer
Chairperson Chist Executive Officer Finance Manager

20th August 2014 20ih August 2014 . 20th August 2014




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR ENDED 30'JUNE 2014

Revenue from Operating Activiies

Revenue from Non-Operaling Aclivilies
Employes Expenses

Non Satary Lahour Cosis

Supplies and Consumables

Admin Expenses

Other Expenses

Net Result Before Capifal and Specific Hems

Capital Purpose Income

Depreciation

Finance Cosls

Expenditure using Capitat Purpose Income

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR

Changes in physical asset revalualion surplus
Changes to financial assels avaiiable for sale revaluation surpius

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT

Note 2014 2013
$000 $1000

2 38,930 35,766
2 444 517
3 (31,570) (32,108)
3 (1,228) (@31)
3 (2,199) (2,118)
3 (2.078) {1,496}
3 (@,277) 2,915)
(1,984) (2,785)

2(a) 7,302 4,379
4 (3,967) (3,956)
5 (25) )
3a) (357) {301)
972 (2,686)

9411 0

265 170

10,648 {2,496)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes.




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BALANCE SHEET
"~ AS AT 30 JUNE 2014
Nota 2014 2013
$000 $'000

Current Assels
Cash and Cash Equivalents ] 6,232 2649
Receivables 7 987 1,493
Investments and other Financial Assets 8 1,961 5,366
Inventorias 9 145 150
QOther Current Assels 10 61 66
Total Current Assels 9,386 0,724
Non-Current Assefs
Receivables 7 455 937
Properly, Plant and Equipment 11 50,213 36,972
Total Non-Current Assets 50,668 37,910
TOTAL ASSETS 60,054 47,634
Current Liabflities
Payables 12 2,558 2,206
Provisions 13 7,530 7,807
Other Current Liabilities 18 8,936 7,404
Total Current Liabilities 19,024 17,418
Non-Cusrent Llabllities
Provisions 13 1,186 1,020
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,186 1,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,210 18,438
NET ASSETS 39,844 29,196
EQUITY
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus 16{a) 32,598 23,187
Financial Assst Available for Sale Revaluation Surpius / {Deficit) 16(a) 217 {48)
Restricted Specific Purpose Surpius 16(a) 10 10
Contlributed Capital 16(b) 21,202 21,202
Acoumulated Surpluses f (Deficits) 16{c) {14,183) {15,155)
TOTAL EQUITY 39,844 29196
Commitments 19
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabllities 20
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CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 2014 2013
$'000 $'000
inflows / Inflows /
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {Outflows} {Outllows)
Operafing Grants from Government 30,505 28,389
Patient and Resident Fees Racaived 4,932 5,109
Donations and Bequests Recelved 0 85
GST received from / (pald o) ATO 81 (98)
Recoupment from private practice for use of hospital facilities 143 304
Interest Received 411 512
Olher Receipls 4,011 2412
Tofal Receipts 40,083 36,863
Employee Expenses Paid (31,721) {31,718}
Non Salary Labour Costs {1,272) (431}
Paymenis for Supplies and Cansumables {2,278) {1,832)
Finance Cosis (25) @
Olher Payments {5.702) (3.864)
Total Payments (40,998) {37,849)
Cash Generated from Operations (915) {088)
Capital Grants from Government 7,056 3,740
Capital Donalions and Bequests Recelved 107 ]
Accommodation Receipls 92 0
NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17 6,340 2,754
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for Non-Financiaf Assets {6,029) {3,308)
Proceads from Sale of Norn-Financial Assels 213 108
Purchase of Investments 18 170
NET CASH FLOW FROM / {USED IN} INVESTING AGTIVITIES (7,798) {3,119)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repaymert of Borrowlngs 0 {105)
NET CASH FLOW FRON / {USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 {105)
MET INCREASE | (DECREASE) iN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD (1,458) {470)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR 33 801
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 6 (1,127) 33

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

)

Thesa annual financlal stalements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Casflemaine Heatth
for the pariod ending 30 June 2014, The purpose of the report Is to provide users with Information abow! the Health
Services' stawardship of resoprcas entrusled fo it

Statamont of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have basn prapared in accordance
with the Financial Management Acf 1994, and applicable AASs, which Include Inlerpretalions issued by the
Australlan Aceounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner consistentvith the
requirementis of AASE 101 Presenfalion of Financlal Statements.

The financial staterents also comply with relavard Financlal Reporiing Directions {FRDs) issued by he
Dapartment of Treasury and Financs, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs} authorised by the Minlster for Flnance,

The Health Service is a notfor profit enlity and therefore applies the addiional AUS paragraphs applicable o
"not-for-profil” Health Services undsr the AAS's.

The annual financlal statemonts ware authorlsed forissue by the Board of Castiemaine Health on 20 August, 2014

Basis of aceounting preparation and measurement

Accounting poficies are selected and applied In a manner which ensures that the resulling financlal Inforration satisfios the concapts of
relevanca and reflability, hereby ensiing that the substancs of the underlying fransactions or other avents Is reported,

The accounting policles set aut below have been appliad In prepating the financial staterrents for the year ended 30 June 2014, and the
comparative Information presented In these financlal statements for the yearendad 30 June 2013,

The golng concern basls was used {o prepare the _ﬁnancla! slatements.
These financlal stalements are presented In Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Health Servics,

Tha dnancial statements, excapt for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basls of accounting. Under the accrual
basls, ltems are racogrised as assels, labliies, eqully, Incorme or expenses when they safisly the definitions and recogniion erlterla for
those Hems, that is they are recognised in the reporting period ko which they relats, regardioss of when cash Is recelved or paid.

The financial statements are prepared i accordance with the historical cost convention, except for:

* Non-cursent physical asssts, which subsequent to acquisition, are measuved al a revalued amount belng thelr falr value al the date

of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made
and are re-assessed with sufficlent regularily lo ensure that the carying amotnts do not materially giffer from thelr falr values;

* Derivalive linancial instruments, managed investment schemes, certaln debl securiiles, and Investmeant properties after infliad
recognition, which are measured at {air value with changes reflectad in the comprehansive cperating slatemant (fafr valie tirough
prefltand loss); and

* Available-for-sale lnvestments which are measured at falr value with movements refiecled in equily unti ihe asset is derecognised
{i.e. other comprehensive income — items that may be reclassified subsaquant o net result),

* The falr value of assets other than land Is generally based on thelr depreciated replacement valua.

Judgements, eslimates and assumptions are required to be made about the camying values of asssis and liabiifies that are not readily
apparent from other sources, The eslimates and assoclated assumptions are based on professional judgements dervad from
historical experience and varlous ofher factors that are belleved te bo reasonable under the circumstances, Aclual results may

differ from these eslimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the perlod In whish the estimate &s revised and also In fufuse periods that are affected
by fhe revision, Judgements and assumplions made by managemant In the application of AASs thaf have significant effects on the
financiat statements and estimates refate fo:

* The falr velue of land, bulldings, Infrastructure, plant and equipment, (refer 1o Note 1{k));

* Superannuation expense {refer to Note 1(h}; and

* Acluarial assumptions for croployao benedlt provisions based on lixely tenure of existing slaff, palterns of leave clalms, future salary
movernents and fulure discoust rates (refer o Nots 1{l}}.




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

{b)

()

{d)

&)

Basis of accounting preparation and measurement (conlinued]

Conslstant with AASB 13 Falr Vafue Measuremnent , Castlemaine Heaith determines the pelicies and procedures far both recuering falr
value meastramanis such as properly, plant and squipment, investment properties and financlal instruments, and for nan-recuning falr
value measurements such as non-financial physical assets held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and the
relavant FRDs.

All assols and llabifities for which falr value Is measured or disclosad In the financial statements are categorised within the fair vakue
hierarchy, describad as follows, based on the fowest level inpuf that is significant o the falt value measurement as a whole:
« Level1- Guated {imadjusfed) market prices In active markas for (dentical assels or abiifles
Laval 2 — Valuation fechnkiues for which the lowest lavet Input thatis significant to the fafr value measurement is direclly
orinditectly observable
Level 3 — Valyatlon fechnlquas for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement Is unohservable.

For the purpose of falr value disclosures, Castlemaine Health has detsrmined classes of assets and liablliles on the basis of the nature,
characterlstics and risks of the asset or liability and the leval of the falr value hlerarchy as explained above.

tn addition, Gastieraine Heallh determines whelher transfers have occurred hetwean levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
catagorisation (based on the lowest fevel input that is signilicant to the falr value measurement as a whole) at the end of gach reporiing

pesfod,
The Valuor-General Victoria (YGV) is Castiemaine Healilv's Independent valuation agency.

Casliemaine Health, In conjunction with VGV menifors the changes in the fair value of each asset and lfabifity through relevant data
sources to determine whethar revaluation [s required.

The eslimales and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revislons to accounting estimates are recognised In the
period in which the esfimate is revised If the revision affects only that period or in the periad of e revislan, and fufure parlads If the revisfon
affecls both cuvrent and future perlods. Judgements and assumplions made by management In the applicatlon of AASs that hava significant
effects on the financlal statements and esfimatas, with a risk of material adjustmants in the subsequent reporiing period, relale to;

* the falr value of land, bulldiags, Infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 4{k):

« superannuation expense {refer fo note 1(h}); and

* acluanal assumpliors for employes benefif provisicns based on llkely tenure of exisling staff, paffems of leave claims, fulure

salary movemeals and fiture discount rales {refar lo Note 1{)}.

Regeriing Entity
The financlel statements includes all the controlfed activitles of Casllemalne Health.

Its princlpal addrass Is:
142 Cornlsh Sfreet
Castlomaing Vie 3450

A descriplion of the nature of Castlemalne Heallh's operations and His principal activiles is included In the repost of operations,
which doas not form part of these financial statements. ’

Objectives and funding
Gasllemaing Hesllh's overall objective is lo be widely acknowledged within our industry and by stakehoiders as & presminant
Australlan Rural Health Service, as welk as Improve the qualily of life to Victorians,

Castlemains Heallh s predominately funded by accrual based grant fundiag for the provision of eulpuls,
Piinciples of Consolidation

Intersegment Transactions
Transactions beiween segments within Gasllamalne Health have been elimitaled o reflect the exient of Castlemaine

Heall's operations as & group.

Assoclates and joint ventures
Assoclates and joint venture are accounted for in accordance with the policy oullined In Note 1(k} Assels.

Jolntly controlled assets or operations
inlerests In joinlly conlrofied assals or operalions are not consolidated by Castlemaine Health, bl ate accounded for

in accardance vAth the polloy cuffined in Nole 1{k) Assets.

Scope and Presentation of Financlal Statements

Fund Accounting

The Castlemalne Hoalth operates on a fung accounting basls and malntalns three funds: Operaling, Specific Purpose
and Capltat Funds. Casllemaine Health's Capital and Speclfic Parpose Funds include unspent capitat donations

and receipts from fundraising activities conducted solely in respest of these funds.




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Nates to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

(e}

Scope and Presentation of Financlal Statements (Continuad)

Services Supported by Health Services Agreement and Services Supported hy Hospital

and Gommunity Inifiatives.

Activilies classified as Senvives Supporfod by Health Senvices Agreement (HSA) are substantially funded by the Dapartment of
Healih and Include Residental Aged Gare Senvices (RACS) and are also furded from other sources such as ihe Commonwaalth,
patients and residents, while Services Supported by Hospital and Commaunlty inltiatives (H & C1) are funded by the Healfh
Service's awn astivilies of local inillatives and/or $1e Commonwealth,

Residenttal Aged Care Service

The Castlemaine Health Residential Aged Care Sesvice aperalions are an infegral part of Castlemaine Health and share Its resources.

An appertionment of buldings has been made based on the valuation dated 30th June 2014, The results of the bwo operations have bean
segregated based on aclual revemite eamed and expenditure Incurred by each oparation in Note 2b to the financial stalements.

Comprahensive operating statement

Tha comprehensive oparating statement Includes the subtotal entitled ‘Net Result Before Capltal end Specific lfems' fo
enhance the understanding of the finandial performance of Casllemaine Health, This sublolal reports the resuft

excluding itemis such as caplta] grants, assets raceived or provided free of charge, depreciation, expenditure using capital
purpose income and flems of an unusual nalure and amount such as specific income and expenses. The exclusion of fhese
flems Is made {o enharce malching of Income and expenses s as fo facilitate the comparabilly and conslstency of resulls
bebween years and Victoran Public Heatth Sewvices. The "Nel Resull Before Capilal and Speclfic [fems' Is used by the
management of Castlemaine Heatth, the Depariment of Health and the Victorian Goveramant to measure the ongoing
operating performance of Heallh Services.

Gapltal and spedific Herns, which are excluded from this sub-tofal comprise;
Captal purpose fncome, which comprises all tied grants, donadlions and bequests recelved for the purpose of
acqulrlng non-curcent assals, such as capltal works, plant and equipment or Intangible assats. |{ also includes
donations of plant and equipment {refer nafe 1 {g)). Consaquently the recognition of revanue as capital purpose
Income is based on the intention of the providar of the revese at the me the revenue Is provided;

* Impalanent of Mancial and non-financlal assefs, inchides all impairment losses {and reversal of previous
[mpaizment losses), which have been recognised fn actondance with pole 1 {k};

+ Deapreclation, as described in note 1 (h);

¥ Expendilure using capltal purpose income, comprises expendilure which either falls balow the asset capltalisation

thrashold or doesn'tmeet asset recognilion criteria and therefore doas not resultin the recogrilion
of an asset In the balance sheet, where funding for that axpendiiure Is from capilat pipose income.

Balance sheet
Assels and Fabilllies are ¢ategorised either as current or non-current {non-cutrent belng those assels or fablfities expecled
to be recovered / selifed more than 12 months after reporting perlod), are disclosed in the noles where relavant,

Statement of changes in equity

The slatement of changes In eqully presents reconcliafions of sach non-owner and owner changes in equity from the opening
balance at the beginning af the reporting period fo the closing balance at the end of the reperfing period. If also shews separately
changes due to amaounls recogalzed In fhe comprehensive result and amounts recognised in other compreherisive Income.

Cash fiow statement
Gash flows are classified according fo whether or nof Ihey arise fom operaling achvilies, Investing activities, o financing
aclivities. This classification Is consistent with requiremants under AASB 107 Stalement of Cash Flows .

For the cash flow statement presentatien purposas, cash and cesh equivalenis includes bank averdrafts, which are
included as sument borowings I the balance shest,




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financlal Statements
30 June 2014

{e)

®

@

Scope and Presentatlon of Financlal Statements {Continued)

Rounding

Altamounts shown In the financlal stalemants are sxpressed fo the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise slated,
Miror discrepancies in tables between iofals and sum of componenls are due fo rounding.

Gomparative Information
There irave been ro changes to comparative information which require addiflonal disclosura.

Cltange In accounting pollcies

AASB 13 Falr Value Measurement

AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all falr value measuremenis, AAST 13 does not change when a health sanvice

Is required fo use fair value, but rafher provides guidance on how to measure fair value under Australian Accounting Standards when

fair value is required or permitted. The healih sewvice has considered the spedllic requitements relating to highest and best use, valuation premise,
and principal {ar most advantagaeous) market. The mathods, assumplions, processes and procedures for determining falr value were revised and
adjusted where applicable. In light of AASB 13, the health service has reviewed the falr value principles as well as Hs current valuation
metfhodelogles In assessing the falr value, and the assessment has not materdally changed the falr values recognissd.

AASE 13 has predominantly impacted tha disclosures of the health servige. It requires specific disclosures about falr value measurements and
disclosuresof fai values, some of which replace existiag disclosure requirements in other standards, Including AASB 7 Financlat

[nstruments: Disclosures,

The disclosure requirements of AASB 13 apply prospectivaly and need not fo be provided for comparative pariods, before inftial application,
Consequently, comparalives of thase disclosures have not heen provided for 2012-13, excapt for financial Instruments, of which the fair value
disciosures are required under AASB 7 Financlal Instruments Disclosures.

AASB 119 Employes Benelils

In 2013-14, the health service has applied AASB 119 Employea Benefills (Sep 2011, as amended; , and related consequential amendments
for the first ime. The revised AASB 119 changes fhe accouniing for defined benefit plans and {erminatlon banafifs,

The most significant changs relates fo the accounting for changes In defined bensefit cbligation and plan assels, As the current accounting
policy i for the Beparitmert of Treasury and Finance fo recognlse and disclose the Stale's defined henefit Sabilities in lis financial statements, change
in defined benefit obligations and plan assels wif have Imied Impact on the health service.

The revisad standard also changes the defiafllon of short-term employea benefits. These were previously benefits that were expected

{o be seflied within 12 months after the end of the reposting period in which the employses render the related service, however, shorf-term
employee henefils are now definad as beneflis sxpected to be setfled wholly withlns 12 months afler tha end of the reporiing period in which
{he employaes render the relaled service, As a resaft, accrued anntal leave balancas which wers previously classified as shorl-tarm
employee beneflis no longer mest this definifior and are now classified as long-lerm employee benefits, This has resulted in a change

of measurement for the annual lsave provision from an urdiscounted to discounted basks.

Casllemaine Health does not consider the change In classification 1o have melerially altered its measuremant of the annual provision,

Income fram transactions

fncome is recognised in accordance with AASB 48 Revenve and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that
the economlc henelits will flow to Casflamaine Health and the Inconte can be rellably measired. Uneamed income
atreportitig date [s reporled as icome recelved in advance.

Amcunts disclosed as revenue ate, where applicable, nel of relums, allowances and dulies and taxes.

Government Grants and other transfers of income (ofher than contribulions by owners)

In accordance with AASB 1004 Conifributions, goverament grants and other trangfers ofincome (olher than contributions
by owners} are recognlsed as Income whan the Health Sewvice gaing controf of the underlying assels lrespective of
whether eondilions are fmposed on the Health Service's use of lite contributions.

Coniributions are doferred as ncoma in advance when the Heallh Setvics has a present obligation to repay them and
the present obligation can be reffably measured.

Indlrect Contributions from the Depariment of Heallh
- Insurancs i3 racogiised as revents followlng advice from the Depariment of Heallk,
- Long Senvice Leave {|.SL) - Revents Is recagnised upon finallsation of movements i LSL. llability in #ne
wilh {he arrangements set ou In the Metropalilan Health and Aged Care Services Division Hospltal Gircular 05/2013,

Patient and Resident Fees
Pallent {ees are racognised as revenue af the fime Invoices are raised.

Donatlons and Other Beguests
Donations and bequests are recognised as raventte when received. If donations are for a speclal
purpose, they may be appropriafed fo a sutplus, such as specific restristed purpose surplus.




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

(w

(1)

Income from transactions {Continued)
Interest revenue
Interest revenue Is recognised on a Ume proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset.

Sale of investments
The gainfioss on the safe of invesiments s recognised when the investmant is realiset,

Fair valua of assets and services racelved free of charge or for nominal consideration

Resources racelved frae of charge or for nominat consideration are recognised af thelr falr value when (he transieree oblalns
control over them, irespaclive of whather restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the conributions, wnless
recelved fram another Health Service or agency as & consequence of a restructzing of administrative arrangements. In the
laller case, such ransfer will be recognised at canylng value, Contrbulions in the fomn of services are ony recognised
when a falr valus can be reliably defermined and the sorvices would have bean purchased if not donaled.

Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are hourred and reported in the financial year to which they relate,

Cost of goods sold
Cosis of goods seld are recogrised when the sale of an flem occurs by transfering the cost or valua of the itemvs from inventosies.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses Include:

+ Wages and salarles;

+ Annual leave;

+ Sick leave;

+ Long sewice tsave; and

« Superannuatlon expenses which ara reported differently depending upon whether employaes are members of
defined benefit or dafirad contribution plans.

Defined contrilution superannuation plans

it relation to defined contribullons (l.e. accumulation) suparannuation plans, fe associated expense [s slimply the employer
conddbutlons (haf are paid or payable In respact of employees who are members of these plans during the reparting petiod.
Conlributions to definad contribulion superannuation plans are expansed when incurred,

Defined henefit superannuafion plans

The amount charged fo the comprehensive operaling statemant in respect of defined henefit supsranauation plans
represents the conlributlons made by the Health Service to the suparannuation plens In respact of the services of
current Heaith Sesvice siaff during {he reporiing parlad, Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on
the relevant rufes of each plan, and are based upon acluarial advice,

Employess of the Castlemalng Health are entifled o recelve superannualion baneflls and the Castlemaine Health contribules
1o both the defined banefit and defined contrbution plans. The defined benefit plans provide benelits based on years of
sawviee and final average safary.

The name and detalls ¢f the major employee supsrannuation funds and contribufions made by Casliomalne Health are
disciosed In Note 14; Superannualion.

Depreciafion

All infrastruclure assols, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-fnenciaf physical assets that have finlte useful fves
are depreclatad (i.e, excludas land assels held for safis, and Investment properies). Depreclation begins when the asset Is
avallabla for use, which Is when itls in the location and condlticn necessary for it fo be capable of opsrating in a mananer

IMended hy managemsnt.
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Expense recognition (Continued)

Depractation {Continued)

Intangible prodused assets wilh fialte lives are depreciated as an expense flom transactions on a systematic basis over the
asset's useful Ife. Depreciafion Is generally calculated on a stralghf ine basls, at a rato that allocates the asset value, less
any estimated residual value over its estimated uselful fe. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and depreciation methad
for all assels are reviewed at least anrually, and adjistments made where appropuiate, This depreciation charge is not
furded by the Depariment of Health. Assets wilh a cost In excess of $1,000 are capilalised and depreciotion has been
provided on depreciable assets so as to aflocate thelr cost or valualion over thelr estimalad usefut llvas,

The following table indicatos the expected useful fives of no-cutrent assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

2014 2013

Buildings

- Structure Shelt Bullding Fabric 45 for 50 years 45 lo 50 years
- Slle Englneerting Services and Cenlral Plant 30 to 4 years 30 {o 40 years
-FitOut 2010 25 years 2010 25 years
- Trunk Reticlated Bullding Systerms 2010 25 years 20to 25 years
Plant & Equipment 610 16 years & to 10 years
Molor Vohicles ’ 8§ years 8 years

Plzase note: (he estimated useful iives, restdual values and depreciation method are raviswed at the end of each annual raporting

periad, and adjustments rade where appropriate.
As partof the bulldings vaksafion, bullding values were componentised and each componeni assessed for s useful

lIfe which Is represented above.

Intanglble produced assels wilh finile lives are depraciated as an expense from transactions on a systemaic basis over the assat's
uselul fife.

Flnance cosis
Finance costs are recognised ns expenses in the porlod In which they are lncured.

Finance costs Include:

- Intareston bank ovardralls and short-tarm: and long-tesm borrowings (interest expense s recognised In the period
in which it Ts Incurred);

- amorlisation of discounis or premiums refafing 1o borrowings;

- amerlisation of ancllilary costs Incuered In conneclion with the arrangement of borrowmgs. and

- finance charges in respect of finance leases recogaised In accordance with AASB 117 Leases.

Grants and other franslers

Grants and other lransfers {o third parties (other than contribution to owners} are recognised as an expense [n the reporting period in
which they are paid of payable. They include lransastions stich as: grans, subsidies and personal benefif payments made i cash
to Individuals,

Other operating expenses
Other operaling expenses generatly ropresent the day-lo-day rmaing cosls Incurred In normal operations and include:

Supplles and consumablos
Supplies and service cosls which are recagnised as an expense in the repotfing pariod in which they are incurrad,
The canrying amounts of any nventorfes held for distrbution are expensss when distibuted.

Bad and doubtiul dabts
Refer o note 1 (k) impakment of financlal assels.
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Expeitse Recagnitlon (Continued)

Gther operating expenses (Continued)
Fairvalue of assets, services and resources provided frea of charge or for nominaf consideration
Cortributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominat consideration are recognised atthelr falr value when the
Iransferee oblalns conlrol over (hem, lrespective of whether restriclions or conditions are imposed over the use of the
contribadions, unless recelved from another agency 6s a consequence of a restrcluring of adminisivative arrangements. In
{he Iatter cass, sush a fransfer will ba recognised at i's carrylng value, Conlributions in the form of services are only
racognised whan a fair valte can be reliably delermined and the services would have been purchased if not donated.

Borrowing costs of gqualifying assets

In accordance with the paragraphs of AASB 123 Bosrowing Costs applicable te not-far-profit public sector entities,
the Heallh Services continues to recognise borrowing costs immediately a3 an expense, lo the extent that they are
directly aftribulable o the acquistiion, construction oz production of a qualifying assel.

Othor comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income measure the change in volume cr value of assefs or liabililiss that do not result from fransactions,

Net gain f {loss} on non-financlal assets
Net gain / {loss) on nop-financial assels and tabilitfes incledes realised and unrealised gang and losses as follows:

DBisposal of non-financial assets
Any galn or loss on the dispasal of non{inanclal assefs Is recognised at the date of dlsposal and Is determined after
deducling from the proceeds the carrylng valus of the asset af that Bime.

Revaluation galns { (losses) of nen-financlal physlcal assets
Relfer to Note () Revaluafions of non-financial physical assefs.

Financial instruments

Financlal instrements arise cuf of confractual agreaments thal give rise to a financial asset of one Health Service and a linancial fiabllity
or equily instrument of another Health Service Due fo the nalure of Casllemalne Heallh's aciivilies, cerlain financial assals

and financlat llzbiittes arise under stafule rather (han a conlrast, Such financlal assels and financlal liabililes do not meet the

definition of financial nshurmetits in AASB 132 Financial Insturments: Presentation. For exampls, stafutory recelvablas

artslng from texes, fines and penedlies do not meet the definition of financlat Insiruments as they do rot arlse under confract,

Where relevant, for nele disclosure purposes, a distinefion Is made between hose financial assets and financlal flabilities that
maet the dafinfiion of financiat nstruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not,

The Followlng refers {o fnanclal instruments uniess ofheswise stated.

. Cafegories of non-derivalive financial instrameants

Loans ant retelvables

Loans and racefvables are tnanclal Inslrurent assals with fned and determinable payments that are not quoted on an
aclive markel. These assefs are Initlally recognised at falr value plus any direclly attdbutable fransaction costs. Subsequent
to Inlital measurement, leans and receivables ate measured at amorfised cost using the effestive Inlerest method, fess

any Impairmant.

Loans and receivables calsgory includes cash and deposils (refer fo Nole (k). term deposits with maturity greater than
three monliis, frade recsivables, Ioans and olher receivables, but not stalufory recelvables.

"
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Financlal Instruments (Continuad)

Available.for:sale financial assels

Available-for-sala financlal insirument assels ase those designated as avallable-for-sals or not classifled [n any other categery of
financial instrument assaf. Such asssls are Initially recognised al fak value. Subsequent to Initial recognition, galns and losses
asising from changes In falr value aze recognised In "olher comprehensive income" untl the investment s disposed of or Is defermined
to bo impalred, at which Ime |he cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In equlfy Is Inclided In nef resuff for the perfod.

Financial lfabititles at amorfised cost

Firanclat Instrument liabilifies are Infially recognised on the date they are oniginated. They are Inlafly measured at falr value

plus any direclly attributable ransaclion costs. Subsequent fo Inilial recognilion, these nanclal Instruments are measured at amorlised
costwith any difforence between the initial recognised amount ard the redemplion being recognised in profitand loss aver the

period of the interest-bearing llebility, using the effeclive Interestrate method.

Flnarcial instroment liabfiies measured at amontised cost Include all of the Health Service's conlractual payables, deposEs held and
advances recelvad, and interest-bearing arrangements other than these designalted af fair valie through profit or loss.

Assels

Gash and Cash Eyuivalents

Cashand cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at calt and Righly Equld laveslments with an

original matusity of tiree monthis of less, which are hekd for fha purpose of meeting short tarm cash commitments rather dan for
Investment purposas, which are readily convertible fo known amounls of cash and are subject {o Inslgnificant risk of changes In vatue.

For cash flow stafsment prasantafion purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrals, which are included s liabilities
on the balance sheet,

Recelvabies

Racelvables consist of:

- Contraclual recaivables, which includes malnly debiors In refallon fo goods and services, boens o Lhird partias,

accrued investment income, and finance (ease receivables; and

- Stabstory receivables, which Includas predominantly amounts owing from the Viclorian Govemment and Goods and Services
Tax ("GST"} input tax credlls recoverable.

Racelvables that ara tantraciual are classified as financlal Instruments and categerised as loans and recelvables. Statutery
receivables are recognised and measured similarly to colractual receivables (excapt for Enpairment), but are not
classifiied a3 financlal Instruments because they do not axise from a confeach,

Reseivables are recognised Inllially af falr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the affective inferast
rate method, less any accumulated impairment,

Trade debiors are camied at nominal amounts due and are due for settfamend within 30 days from the date of recognilion.
Collectabiifty of debils ks reviewed on an ongelng basis, and debis which are known o be uncolleclible are wrilten off,

A provision for doubtiuf debls Is recognised when thers |s objeciive evidence that the debls may not be collected and

bad dabts are wiitien off whon [denlified.

Investiments and other financizl assefs

Investienis are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an Invesimant Is under a coniracl
whose terms requlre delivery of the Investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are Initlaly
meastred ai fafr valus, net of transaclion cosls,

Investrenis are ciassified In the following categories:
- Financlal assats at falr value through profit or loss;
- Held-to-malurity;
- Loans and recelvables; and
- Avallable-for-sale financiaf assels.
i2
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Assels {Continued)
fawesiments and other financlal assefs (Contineed)

Castlemaine Health classifies its other finandial assels befween current and non-current assels based on the purpose for
which the assets were acqulred. Management dotermines tha classification of Hs ather financial assels at inila! recognliion.

Castlomaine Heallh assesses al each balance shaet date vhether a financial asset of group of financial asseds |s Impaired.
All financlat assels, except those measured af falr value through profit and loss are subject to annual yevlew for Impairment,

inventories
Invandories Include goods and other property hald elther for sale, consumption or for distibution at no or nominal
costin the ordinary course of business eperations. ilincludes land held for sale and exclitdes depraciabls asssls.

Inventories held for distribution are measured af cost, adjusled for any loss of service potential, All other inventoses,
including fand held for sale, are measured at the lower of cos! and nst realisable value,

Inventeries acquirad for no cost or nominal conslderations are meastred at current raplacement cost at the date of aceulsition,

The bases used in assessing loss of service potential for invenlodes held for distribifion Include curvent replacement
cost and technical or functional cbsclascance, Technical obsolescence cequrs when an llem still functians for

some or all of the fasks it was origlnally acquired to do, butna longer maiches exisling {echnologies. Funclional
abselascancs occurs when an flem no fonger functions the way it did when i was first acquired.

Gost s assigned to fand for sale (urdeveloped, under development and developed) and to other high value, tow volume
inventory ilems on a specific idanfification of cost basls.

Gost for all other Invantory is measurad on tha basis of weighted average cost.

Proparly, plant and equipment

All non-gurrant phiysical assefs are measured infllally at cost and subsequently revalued at faf value less accumulated
depraciatlon and impairment. Where an assel [s acquired for no or notinal cost, the costis its fair value at the date of
acquisilion, Assels lransferred as part of 2 merger / machinery of goverament aie transferred at thelr carrying amount

More details about the vattailon techniquas and inputs used in determining the fair value of non-fipancial physteal assefs

are dlscussad in Note 14 Propery, plant and equioment .

The initiaf cost for non-financlal physleal assels under firance lease Is measured at amotnis equal to the falr value of the leased
asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the Inception of the lease.

Grown land s measured a falr value with regard to the properfy's highest and best use after due consideralion is made

for any legal or coaslructive resticiions Imposed on the asset, public annotncements or commitments made in relation ta

the Intended vse of (he assef. Theoretical opportunities that may be avaflable in relation o the assef(s) ars not taken

fafe account undll it is virtually certain that any restriction will no longer apply. Therefore, unless othenwise disclosed, the cumrent
use of these non-financlal physical assets will be {heir highest and best uses,

Land and bulldings are recognised [nilfally at cost and subseguenty measured at fair valus less accumulated
depreciation and Impalrment,

Plant, equipment and vehicles are recognlsed nitfally al cost and subsequently meastred at falr value less acoumufated
dapreciation and mpairment, Depreciafed historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for depreslated replacament cost
because of he short lives of the assels concarmad.

Ravaluations of nov-current physical assets

Nan-cuerent physieal assats are measired i fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103E Non-current physical
assefs. This revalualion process nomally occurs atdeast every five years, based upon fha asss{s Governmenf Purpose
Classification bul may oceur more frequently i falr valie assessments Indicate materlal changes In values, Independent valuers are
used to conduct these scheduled revaltations and any interim ravaluations are determined In accerdance with the requirements of
{he FRDs. Revaluation increments or decrements atiss from differences belwean an assel's canylng value and falr valua.

Ravaluation nerements are racognised in "ather comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly to the asset revaluation swplus
except that, to the extent that an increment raverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of assef previously

recognised as an expense In the net result, the increment Is recognised as income In 1he netresult
13
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Assets (Continuted)

Revaluations of non-current physfeal assets (Continued}

Revaluation decrements are recognised In ‘other comprehensive Income' 1o the extent that a credit balance axlsts
(n the asset revaluation stirplus In respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment.

Revaluation Increases and revalualicn dacreases refafing to Individual assets within an asset class are offset
agains! one another withia that ¢lass but are not offse! In respest of assels In different classes.

Revalualion surplus 18 not transferred {o accumulated funds on derecognilion of the relevant assel.

In accordance with FRD 103 Gastlemaine Health's non-currant physleal assels wore assessed to determine
whether revaliafion of e non-cuvent physloal assels was required.

Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prapayments which represen! paymeis in advanca of recelpt of goods or services
or thal part of expendilure made in one accoimfing period covering a ferm exlending bayond that perod.

Bisposal of non-financial assels
Any galil or loss on the sale of non-financlal asssts Is recognlsed in (he comprehensiva operafing statement. Refer fo

note 1(i) - ‘olher comprehensive income’,

apalment of ron-financat assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with Indefinits lives (and Intangible assets not yet avatlable for use) are fested annually
for Impairnent {as described balow) and whenever there Is an Indicatfon thal the asset may be Impaired.

All other non-financial assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment, except for:
’ Inventories;
. financiz) assels;
. investment properties that are measured at fak valus;
v non-current physical assots held for sale; and
. agsels asising from canstruclion contracls.

If there I an indicatlon of impairment, the assets concerned are lested as to wheather thelr carrying

valie exceads thelr possible recoverable amount. Where an assel's carrying value exceeds Iis recoverable
amount, the difference Is wifiten-off as an expense except to the axlent that the wite-down can be dabited to an
an bsset revaluallon reserve amount applicable o that same class of asset.

[f there |s an indicatlon that there has been a change in the estimate of an assel's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised, the carying amount shall be increased fo ils recoverable amount. This reversal of
the Impairment foss ocelrs only fo the extent thal the assel's canrying amount does not exceed the caerying amount
{hat would kave been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if ao Impairment loss had been recognised in
prior years.

1tis deamad hat, In the evant of the loss or destruction of an assel, the fufure economic banefits arsing from the use of
{he asset will he replaced unless a specifle decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverabla amount

for most assets is measured at the higher of depreclated replacement cost and fair value less costs fo self,
Recoverabls amount for assels held pimarily to generale net cash inflows Is measured al the higher of the

aresent value of {ulure cash flows expectad lo ba obtained from the asset and falr value less costs to sell.
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Assots (Continued)

wvestinents In Jolntly controlled assats and operations

In respact of any Inferastin Jolntly confrolled assets, Casllemaine Health recognises in the financial statements:
- ifs share of jolnfly conlrolled agsets;

-any labifties that it had Incured;

- its share of llabiilles Incurred Jolnlly by the joInt venlire;

- any Income eamed from the sefling or uslng of #ts share of the output from {ie joint verture; and

- any expenses incurred In relation {o heing an investor in the joint venture,

For joinfly controlled eperations Castlemaine Health recognises:

- the assels that it controls;

- the Itablliles that it Incurs;

-expenses thal it ineurs; and

- the share of Income that It earns from seling oulpuis of the Jolnt venture,

Derecognition of financtal assets

A linancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial agset or part of a group of similar Inanclal assels) is

derecogaised when: .

-1he rights fo receive cash fows from the asset have expired, o

- the Health Seivice retains the sight fo recelve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them In fu¥
without material delay to a flrd pary under a ‘pass through' amangement; or

«the Health Service has transfarrsd its righls to recelve cash flows from the assst and sither;

(a) has transferred substantlally all the risks and rewards of the assef; or

(b} has nefther transfarred nor refained substantlally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has fransforred confrol of the assel.

Whera the Heallh Service has nellher transfarred nor relained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred conleal,
{he assetis recognised to the extent of the Health Senvice's continuing Involvement in the assat,

Impairment of financlal assefs

Althe end of each reporting period Casllemaine Health assesses whether there is oblective evidence that a financlal
asset or group of financlal assels i impaired. All financial instrument assets, except {hose measured at falr value through
profit and [oss, are stbject to annual review for Impalrment.

Recsivables are assassed'for bad aad doubifir! dsbis on a regedar basis, Bad debis considered as wiitten off and alfowances
for doubtful recelvabies are expensed. Bad debtwillien off by mutuat consent and the allowance for doubtfuf debis are classified
as ‘ather comprehensiva income' Iin the net result.

The amount of the allowance I3 the diiference betvieen the financial assels camying amount and the present vake of
eslimaled fulure cash flows, discounted at Lhe effective inferast rale.

Where the falr value of an Investment In an equily Instrument at balance daie has reduced by 20 percent or more than is
cost price or where ils fair value has been less than Ifs cos! price for a perlod of 42 or more months, the financlal asset
is freated as Impairad,

I order fo delermine an appropriate falr vahié as at 30 June 2013 for ifs porifolio of financlal assets, Casfiemalne Health
oblained a valualion basad on the best avallabla advice using an estimated market value Trough 2 reputable financlal instifulon,
This value was compared against valualion methadologles provided by the Issieer as at 30 June 2013, These mefhedologies
were critigued and consldered to be consistent with standard markel valuation techniques.

1n assessing impafrment of slatutory (non-contractual) fnanclal assefs, which are not financlat Instruments, professionat
udgerent s applisd In assessing materialily using estimales, averages and other computationa! methods in accordance

wilh AASB 136 Impafrmient of Assels.
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Assets (Continued)

Net gainf{loss) on finaneial instruments

Net Gatni{Loss) on financial instruments Includes:

- realised and unrealised gains and fossss from revaluations of financial instruments that are deslgnated al fair value
hrough profit or loss or hekd-for-rading,

~ Tpairment and reversal of impafrment for financlat fnstruments at amorlised cost; and

- disposals of financial assels and derscognitlon of financlal llabiliies.

Revaluations of Hinanclal Instruments at fair value
The revaluation galn/(loss) on financlal Instruments al falr value excludes dividends ar intsrest eamed on finanslal assels.

Liabifitles

Payahles

Payables consist of:

- contraclual payables which conslst predeninantly of accounts payable representing Habiittes for goods and services
provided fo the Health Service prior o the end of the financial vear hat are unpald, and arlse when the Heallh Sevice
hecames obliged to make future payments in respact of the purchase of those goods and services, The aormad eredit
terms for aocounts payable are usually Neti 30 days.

- slatulory payables, such as goods and services lax and fringe henefils tax payables,

Confraciual pavables are classifled as financial instrurments and are Inllially recognised at falt valus, and then subsequently
carriad at amortised cost. Statulory payables are recogrised and reasursd simflarly to conlractual payables, buf ase not
classified as financlal inslruments and notinchided In te category of financial liabllifles al amorfised cost, becausa they do nof
arise from a confract.

Borrowings
Al hotrowings are initlally recognised at falr value of the consideration received, less directly affributable fransacilon costs,

The measurement basis subseguen fo Initial recognifion depends on whether the Health Service has categorised its borrowings
as either financlal fabllilies designated at fair value through prefit or Joss, or financial labililies at amorlised cost. Any differenca
hetwesn tha iniial recogaised amoun! and the redemplion value Is recognised in not result over the peried of the barrowings using
1he efiective Inferest method.

Provisions
Provisions are recogiised when the Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifics of sconomic baneflls Is
probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured rellably,

The amount recegnised as a provision is the best estimale of the conskieration required fo seltle the present obligation at
reporling dale, taking info account the rsks and uncertalnties surreunding the obligation. Where a provision Is measured
using the cash flows estimated lo sefile the present oblkgation, lis camying amoeuntis the present value of those cash flows,
using a discount rale that reflects the fime value of money and risks specific {o the provision,

When some or all of the economle beneflts requlred to setile a provision are expected fo be received from a third parly, the

recelvable s recognised as an assel if it is virlually certain that recovery will he recelved and the amount of the recelvable
can be measured rellably,
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Liabllities (Continuad)

Emgloyee heneflis
This provislon arises for benefils aconuing to employees I respec! of wages and salaries, annual leave and fong

sanvice laave for services rendered fo the reporting dale.

Wages and safaries, annual feave, sick leave and acsrued days off

Liabiiies for wages and salarles, Including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, acoumulaling sick leave and
accred days off which are expected to be settled within 12 monfhs of the reporting dale are recognised inthe
provisian for employes bansfits In respect of employee's services up o the repotting date, and are classiled as
cument llabliies and measured al thelr nominal values.

Those llabllifes that the Heallh Service are not expecled to be seftied withtn 12 months are recoguised in {he provision
for employeo beneiifs as curcent llablilies, measured at present value of the amotnts expectad to be pald when the
Habilities are sellad usiag the remunsrallon rate expected to apply at the ime of sefllsment.

Long service leave

Liabfity for LSL is recagnised In the proviston for empfoyee bansfits,
Uncenditional LSL Is disclosed in the noles fo the financlul slalements as a current liability, even where the heallh service doss not
axpect to selfie the llability within 12 months becauise it will not have the uncondilional right fo defer the sefffement of the enfilement shatid
an employse take leava within 12 menths.
The components of this current LSE. iabilly are measured at:

Undiscounted vahie ~ If ihe healih service sxpects to wholly sefile within 12 months; and

Prosant value —if the health service does not axpact to wholly setlle within 42 monhs,
Conditionat L8L. Is disclosed as a non-current llabiily. There is an unconditional right fc defer the selllement of the entitiement until the
employee has completed the fequisite years of service. This non-current LSL liabifily is measured at present value.
Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the presant value of non-current LSL. Habfily [s recognised as a transaction, except ko the

extent thala galn or loss arlses due to changes Iy bond Interast rales for which Itis then recognised as an ofher econoinic flow,

Termination benefits

Termination benefils are payable when employment is ferninated bafore the normal refirement date or when an employee decides to
accept an offer of benelits In exchange for the termination of employment,

The health service racognises termination benafits when it [s demonstrably committed to sither terminaling the employment of curvent
employees according to a deftalled fomal plan without possibiity of withdrawal or providing fermination berelits as a result of an offer
mads t encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months affer the end of the raporting perfod are discounted

to presen value.

On-costs
Employee hensglit on-costs, such as payrall tax, workers compensation, superannuation are recognised separately

from provisions for employee benefits,

Superannuation flabititles

Casllemaing Heallh does noi recogaise any unfunded delined benafit ablllty In respact of the

superanntation plang bacase tha Health Service has no legal or constructive obligation ko pay fulure banefits
relating to is emgployees; its only obligation Is to pay superannsation contributions as they fall due,

Equily

Contributed Capltal

Consistent with Australian Acceunfing Inferpretation 1038 Conlribtttions by Owners Mads fo Whally-Owned
Publlc Seclor Entilfes and FRD 1184 Confributions by Owaers , approprialions for additions to the nat assel
base have been designated as confdbuted capital. Other fransfers that are In the nature of caniributions

or distribufions, that have been deslgnated as conldbuted capital are also freated as conirbutad capital,

Transiers of net assets arising from adminstrative restructurings are treated as contributions by owners. Transfers of nat
Tabilities arising from administraiive resirclures are fo go through the comprehensive oparaling stalement,

Properdy, plant and equipment revaluation surplus
The assst revaluation surplus is used to record ncrements and decrements on the revaluatlon of

non-gurrent physical assels,
Specific restricted purpose surplus

A specliic restricted purposa swiplus Is established where the Health Seivice has possesslon or fille fo the funds buf has
no discretlon to amend or vary the resiiiction and/or condltion underlying the funds recsived,
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{m)

{n)

{o}

]

(@

Equity (continned)

Cominitinents

Commitments for future expenditure include operaling and caplial commitments arising from contracts. These comimitments are
dlsclosed by way of a note {refer fo nole 19) a their nominal value and are Inclusive of fhe goods and services tax {'GST')
payable. In addiflon, whera itis consldered approptiate and provides addilionat refevant Informafion fo users, the nef prasent
values of significant Individual projecis are staled. These fulure expendttures cease to be disclosed as commitments once fhe
related llablities are rocognised on the balance sheal,

Contlagent assets and conlingent liabllitles

Conlingent assels and contingent llablillas are not racognised In the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of
note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Gontingent assets and confingent liabilifies are presented
Incluslvs of GST recelvable of payable respectively.

Goods and Services Tax ("GST")

Incoms, expenses and assels are recognised niel of the amount of assoclated GST, unless the GST ictrred is nol
racoverable from the taxation authority. [n this case the GST payable ts recognised as parl of the cost of acgudsition
of the asset or as part of the expenss,

Recejvables and payables are slated Inclusive of the amount of GST recefvable or payable. The net amount of GST
racoverable fraim, or payable to, the taxalion atithodly s Included with ofher recelvablos or payables in the Bafance Sheef.

Cash flows are presenled on a gross basls. The GST cemponents of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activilies which are recoverabls from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flow.

Commillments for axpenditure and contingent assels and liabililies are presented on a gross basis.
AASs issued thal ars viof yet effective

Cerlain new Austealian accounting standards have bean published that are nol mandatory for fhe 30 Jure 2013 reporting period.
DTF assessas the mpact of 28 these new standards and advises the Health Service of thelr applicabllity and early adoptlon where

applicadla,
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(4) AASsissued that are not yel effestive {Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, the following sfandards and infsipretations had been issued by the AASE butwere ot yei effeclive.
They become effective for the first financlal statements for reporting perlods commencing atter the stated operative dates
as delalled In the table belew. Casllemaine Health has nof and does not infend fo adopt thesa standards eatly.

assefs resulling from Phase 1 of the JASB's project fo
raptaca IAS 38 Financlal Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremenlt (AASB 139 Finenclal Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement).

Applicable for  [impact

annual reporting  |on

periods heginning |Enfities
Stanctard [ interpratation Summary on Anngal
AASE 9 Financlal This standard simplifies requirements for the 1 January 2017 [The preliminary assessment has
Instruments classification and measurament of financial identified that the financial Impact

of avaitable for sale {AFS) assels
will now be reparied through
other comprehensive income
(OCI) and no longer recycled to

ithe profit and loss.

While the preliminary assessmen
has not idantiffed any materlal
Impaclarising from AASB 9,

it will confinue fo be manifored
and assessad,

in Olher Entities

thal enables users of financial statements fo evaluate
the nalure of, and risks associated with, interesis in
olher entifles and e effacts of thoss Interests on the
financlal statements, This Standard replaces the
disclosure requifements in AASB 127 Seperale
Financlal statements and AASB 131 Inferesfs in
Joint Ventures.

{not for Profit
Enfies)

AASB 10 Congolidaled This Standard forms the basls for defermining 1danuary 2014 |Forthe public sectar, AASE 10

Financial Sfatements which enfiftes should be consotidated tate an {rot for Profit bullds on the confrol guldance
endity's financlal statements, AASB 10 defines Entilias) {hat exlstad In AASB 127 and
conirol as requiring expestre or rights to interpretation 112 and is not
variable refurns and the ability o affect those relurns oxpected 10 change which entities
through povier over an investas, which nead {o be consolidalad,
may hroaden the concept of control for ihe publis Ongoing work is being done
seolor entifias, Ho monttor and assess ke impact
Tha AASB has lssued an exposwre dralft ED 238 of this standard,

Gonsclidated Flnancial Statements - Ausfrallan
tmplementalion Guidance for Nokfor-Profit

Enlities that explains and Musteates how the
prinelples In the Standard apply from the perspeciive
of not-for-proflt enfities in the private and publle
saclors.

AASB 11 JointArrangements | This Standard deals with the concept of jolnt conlrol, |1 Jan uary 2014 {Based on current assessment,
and sets out a new piinciples based approach for {not for Profit enliies already apply the equity
determining the type of joint arrangement that exisls  |Entitias) method whan aecounting for
and the correspending accounting freatment, jolnt ventures. s anticlpated
The new categorios of Jolnt arrangements undar that there would ba no material
AASB 11 are more aligned to the aclual rights and [mpact.
obligations of the parties o the arrangement. Ongoing wark is being done

to monlor and assess {he inpaet
of this standarcd.

AASH 12 Disclosure of Inferests | This Standard requlres disclosure of information iJdan vary 2014 |The new standard is likely to

require eddifienat disclosures
and ongoing work is being done
to detormine the extent of
gddéonal disslosure requirement,
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{4) AASsissued that are nof yet effective (Continued)
AASB 127 Seperafe Financlal  §This revised Stendard presciibes the accounting and |1 Jan vary 2684 |Gueren! Assessmant indlcates
Statements disclosure requirements for investments In subsldlaries)(not for Proflf {hat thara Is limifed Impacton
Joint veniures and assoclates when an enfity prepares |Enliies} VYictarlan Public Seclor antilles.
sepatale financlal stalements. Ongoing work is being done
to monitor and assess the impast
of this standard.
AASE 128 hvesimenls in This revised Standard sefs out fhe requirements for  {1Jan vary 20144 jCurrent Assessmonl indicates
Assoclales and Joint Veniwres  fthe application of the equity method when accounting {{nod for Profit thatthere is limited impact on
for Invasiments I assoclates and jolnt venfures Entllles) Viclordan Publlc Sacior entities.
Ongolng work Is belng done
to monitor and assess the Impact
of this sfandard.
() Category Groups

The Castlemalne Health has used the following category groups for reporting purposes for the current and pravious
financlal years.

Admftted Patient Services (Admitted Patlenis) comprises all recurrent health revenus/expendilure
on admilted patlent sevices, where services ate delivered In public hospllsls, or fren standing day hospital
facifiies, or alcohol and drug treatment unlts or hospitals speclalising In denial services, hearlng and ophthalmlc alds,

Quipatient Services {Outpatients) comprises aft recurrent healih revenue / expendilure on public hospilal lype oulpationt
sarvices, where services are delivered in public hospital culpatient clinics, or free standing day hospitat facilities, or rehabilitation
facilifles, or alcohe) and drug freatment unis, or cufpafiani clinics spedialising in opthalmic alds or palliative care.

Aged Cara comprises ravenue/expendiure from Home and Comemunity Cars (HAGC) programs,
allied Health, Aged Care Assessmert and support serviees.

Primary Heallh comprises revenuefexpenditure for Community Health Senvices including health promotion
and counseliing, physietherapy, speech therapy, podiatry and cecupaflonal therapy.

Resldential Aged Care Including Mental Health (RAG incl, Mental Heallh) raforred to In the past a5 psycho gerialrc
tesldential services, compises those Commonwealth-licensed resldential agad care services tn receipt of
supplementary funding from DH under the mental health program. 1t excludes ali other residential services funded
under {he mental health progear, such as mental health funded commundty care units (CCUs}

and sacure extendad care units {SECs).

Other Services excludad from Australian Heallh Care Agreement (AHCA) (Other)

complises revenuefoxpanditure for services not separatsly dassiiiad above, Including: Publie

Health Sewvices Including Laboralory tesling, Blood Bome Vizusssf Sexually Transmitied Infecfions
¢linlcat servicas, Koarls lialson officers, immundsation and screening services, Drugs seivices Including
drug vithdrawal, counsetling and the needle and syringe program, Dental Health senvices, including
general and specialist dental care, school dental services and clinical educaflon, Disablllly services
Including aids and equipment and flexible support packages o people with a disabillty, Communlly Care
programs including sexual assault suppart, early parenting services, parenting assessment and skills

devalopment, and various suppert services. Health and Communlty Initiatives also fafls in this cafegory group.
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Note 2: REVENUE HSA HSA H&Cl H&ClI  TOTAL TOTAL
2014 2013 2014 2013 W4 2013
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Revenue fram Operating Activitles
Government Granls
- Bepartment of Health 5,264 21,149 0 ] 6,264 21,149
- Vigtorian Health Funding Pool 16,436 ¢ g 0 16,438 0
- Stafe Governmont - Other 569 523 0 0 563 523
- Commonwaealih Governitent
- Residential Aged Care Suhsidy 7,279 6,047 ] ¢ 7,279 6,047
- Case Management Services 254 ] ] 1] 264 0
Total Government Grants 29,802 20,719 0 0 29,802 27,719
Indirect Conlributions by Deparlment of Health
- lsurance 33 207 0 0 33 207
- Long Service Leave 268 80 0 0 268 ag
Total indlrect Contiihutions by Depariment of Health 301 287 ] ] 3 297
Pafenit and Resident Fees
- Patlan{ and Resident Fees {reler note 2b) 1453 1,892 ¢ 0 1,453 1,992
-~ Residential Aged Care (refer note 2b) 3,254 2,649 0 0 3,254 2,649
Total Patient and Resident Foes 4,707 4,641 0 ] 4707 4644
Commarcial Aclivities and Specific Purpose Funds
Catering 0 i} 168 926 168 926
Laundry 0 0 a7 90 a7 a0
Gafeleria 0 0 207 0 207 0
Properly Income 0 0 256 0 256 0
Other ¢ 0 -29 34 29 3
Tofal Commorclal Astivities and Specific Purpose Funds ¢ ¢ 757 1,061 757 1,061
Privale Praclice Recoupment for Use of Hospilal Facilities 143 394 0 0 143 394
Loddon Maflee Rural Health Alliance 276 485 ] 0 276 465
Other Revenue from Operating Aclivitios 2817 1,200 27 ] 2,544 1,200
Totat Revenue from Opsrating Activities 38,146 34,718 784 1,051 38,920 35,766
Revenue from Non-Operating Activifies
Interest and Dividends - 0 0 441 517 441 517
Total Revenue fram Non-Operating Activities 0 0 At 57 441 517
Capital Purpose Income
State Govarnment Capital Grants .
- Targeted Capital Wortks and Equipment 6,702 3,740 0 0 6,702 3740
- Other 354 0 0 0 . 354 0
Residential Accommodafion Payments {refer nofe 2b) 92 502 0 ] 82 592
Nat Gain/{Loss) on Disposat of Mon-Financial Assels {refer nofe 26) 0 0 (50) 39) (50} {39)
Donations and Bequesls 0 ] 107 g5 107 85
Qther Capital Purpose Income 97 0 0 0 a7 {
Total Capital Purpose Income 7,245 4,332 57 48 7:302 4378
Total Revanua (rafer note 2a) ' 45,301 35,048 1,262 1,613 46,673 40,662

Indiract coniributions by Department of Health; Deparlment of Health makes cerlain paymanis on behalf of the Heatth
Service. These amounts have been brought lo account in determining the operating result for the yeas by recording
{liem as revenue and expenses,

This nola relales lo revenues abava the net result lire only, and does not reconclle to comprehensive income.,

2




CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2a: ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOQURCE -

Revenue from Services Suppotted by Health
Services Agreement

Government Grants

Indirect Contributions by Departmant of Health
Patient and Resident Fees (refer note 2b}

Recoupment from Private Praclica Fees for Use of Hospltal Facllitles

Loddon Malles Rural Health Alliance

Other Revenue from Operating Activifies

Gapital Purpose Ingoma (refer note 2}

Total Revenue from Services Supported
by Health Services Agreament

Revanue from Servlces Supported by Hospital

and Community Initlatives

Commercial Activities and Specillc Purpose Funds

Capital Purpose [hcotre {refer note 2)

Others

Total Revenus from Services Supported by
Hospital and Community Inifiatives

TOTAL REVENUE

Indirest Gontributions by Health

3¢ June 2014
Admiited Residential Aged Other  TOTAL
Patients  Outpatients Aged Care Gare
Inct
Mental Health
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
$'060 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 §:000
14,890 2,884 9,849 1,257 822 29,802
161 30 83 9 18 301
1,169 173 3,254 113 8 4,707
77 14 39 4 9 143
0 ¢ 0 0 276 276
894 356 210 255 1,400 2,917
0 0 92 0 7,163 7,245
17,081 3,459 13,627 1,638 8,686 45,391
0 0 1 0 784 784
0 0 0 0 57 57
0 0 441 0 0 441
0 0 441 0 841 1,282
17,061 3,459 13,968 1,638 10627 46,673

Departreent of Health makes cartain payments on behalf of the Health Service. These amounts have been brought to
account n determining the oparating result for the year by recording them as revenus and expenses.
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Note 2a; ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOURCE Admitted  Residential Aged Other  TOTAL
Patients  Aged Care Care
Ine!
Mental Health
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$'000 $'000 $'002 $000 $'000

Revenue from Services Supported by Health
Services Agreement
Government Grants 17,518 8,691 857 651 27,719
indirect Contributions by Deparment of Health 287 ¢ 0 ] 297
Pafient and Resident Fees {refer nota 2b} 1,992 2,649 0 0 4,641
Recoupment from Private Practice Foos for Use of Hespitat Faclities 9 g 0 394 304
loddon Mallee Rura) Health Alliance 0 0 ] 485 465
Other Revenue from Operating Activilles 1,063 137 0 0 1,200
Capital Purposs Income {refer note 2) 0 0 4] 4,332 4,332
Total Revenue from Services Supported

by Health Services Agresment 20,872 11,477 857 6,842 39,048
Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital
and Community Initlatives
Commercial Aclivilies and Specific Purpose Funds 0 0 0 1,016 1,016
Capital Purpose Income (refer note 2) 0 0 0 46 46
Othars 0 §51 0 0 551
Total Revenue from Services Supported by

Hospital and Carmunity Initiatives 6 551 0 1,062 1,614
TOTAL REVENUE 20,872 12,028 857 5,905 40,662

Inciirect Contributions by Health
Depariment of Health makes certain payments on behalf of the Health Service. These amounts have been brought to

account in determining the operating rasult for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.
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NOTE 2b: PATIENT AND RESIDENT FEES
Patient and Resitent Fees Raised 2014 2013
Recurrent: $000 $'000
Acute
- Inpatients (%) 1,163 1,722
- Other 290 270
Residential Aged Care
- Generic 3,254 2,649
TOTAL REGURRENT 4,707 4,641
Capital Purpose:
Resldentlal Accommodation Payments {**) 92 592
TOTAL CAPITAL 92 592
() Compensable payments (such as TAC, WIES and DVA throughpuf) are excluded.
{**) This Includes accommodation charges, interest eamed on accomrodation bonds and retention amount,
NOTE 2¢: NET GAIN/{LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 2014 2013
$000 $000
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Gurrent Assets
- Motor Vehicles 211 109
- Non Medical Equipment 2 0
Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets 213 108
Less: Writlen Down Value of Non-Current Assets Disposed
- Motor Vehicles (263) (148}
- Non Medical Equipmant 0 ]
Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Disposed {263) {148)
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS {50 (39
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Note 3: EXPENSES

Enployee Expensas
Salarles and Wages
Woark Cover Pramizm
Departure Packages
Lang Servics Leave
Superannualicn

Total Employee Expenses

Non Salary Labour Costs
Feas for Visiing Medicat Officers
Agency Costs - Nursing & Other
Total Non Salary Labour Costs

Supplias and Consumables
Drug Supplies
Medical, Surglcal Supplies and Prosihesls
Pathalogy Supplies
Food Suppties
Total Supplies and Consumables

Other Expenses
Pomeslic Services and Supplies
Fuel, Lighd, Power and Waler
Insurance costs funded by the Depattment of Health
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Maintenance Contracis
Pafient Transport
Bad and Doublful Debis
Advertising Expenses
Laoddon Mallse Rurat Health Alliance
Thealra Redevalepment
Other Administrative Expenses
Other Exponses
Audit Fees
- VAGO - Audit of Financial Stalemenis
- (ther Audit Services

Total Other Expenses

Expenditure using Capital Purpose ncome
Other Expenses
- Other

Total Expenditure ushng Capltal Purpose Income

Impairment of Assefs
Depreciation {refor note 4)
Finance Costs {refer nole 5}
Total impairment of Assets

TOTAL EXPENSES

This nole relates to expenditure above tha net result fine only, and doss nol reconcile fo comprehensive result,

HSA HSA H&CI HaCt  TOTAL TOTAL
2014 2M3 2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $000 §000 $'000 $'000 §'o00
25947 26,250 1,132 1,648 27,086 20,798
a9 734 10 44 699 7T
38 0 0 0 318 0
792 811 12 43 804 853
2625 2,630 38 149 2,663 2,680
30,371 30,324 1,188 1,784 31,570 32,108
949 245 0 Q 948 245
278 186 1 0 279 186
1,227 431 1 0 1,228 431
135 270 166 it an 281
869 790 0 ¢ a0 780
86 a6 0 0 86 88
863 848 80 113 943 861
1,953 1,994 246 124 2,199 2118
314 346 39 37 363 382
581 620 Y 60 581 680
33 207 0 0 33 207
138 218 0 26 188 244
357 KYE] 2 16 359 392
121 126 0 O 121 128
203 200 0 0 203 200
i 42 0 0 1 42
24 0 0 0 4 0
607 097 0 8 §07 597
1,626 ] 0 g 1,626
1517 1,496 264 ¢ 1,781 1,496
435 0 0 0 435
23 2 e 0 23 22
20 24 Y 0 20 24
6,060 4,271 305 140 6,365 4419
260 i 107 301 387 a0t
20 2 W7 301 357 301
0 0 3,967 3,956 3,967 3,956
4 0 25 4 25 4
0 0 3992 3,960 3,982 3,960
39,851 37020 5,350 6,308 48,701 43328
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Wofe 3a; ANALYSIS OF EXPENSE BY SOURGE Admitted Residential Aged Other TOTAL
‘ Patients  Qufpafients Aged Care Care
inck
Mental Health

2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Services Supported by Health Service Agreement
Employee Expensas 11,228 2,662 13,582 1,657 1,242 30,371
Non Salary Labour Costs 1,081 32 61 44 g 1,227
Supplies and Censumables 869 96 836 55 97 1,953
Other Expenses from Confinuing Operations 3,858 699 1,279 159 55 6,050
Total Expenses from Services Supported by
Health Services Agreemant 17,036 3,489 16,768 1,918 1,403 39,801
Services Supported by Hospltal and Community Initiatives
Employes Expenses 0 0 0 ] 1,199 1,199
Non Salary Labour Costs 0 0 0 0 1 1
Supplies and Consumables ] 0 4] 0 246 246
Ofther Expenses from Confiauing Opeialions 0 ¢ Q 0 305 308
Total Expense from Services Supperted by
Hospital and Community Initiatives 0 ] 0 { 1,751 1,751
Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Other Expshses 0 0 0 0 357 357
Total Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income 0 0 0 357 3b7
Depreciation (refer note 4) 0 ¢ 0 0 3,967 3,967
Finance Cosis {refer note 5) 13 2 7 1 2 25
Total Expenditure from Services supported

by Health Services Agreement and by Hospital

and Community Initiatives 13 2 7 1 3,968 3,992
TOTAL EXPENSES 17,049 3,491 15,765 1,916 7480 45,704
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Note 3a: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSE BY SOURGE Admitted  Residential Aged Other  TOTAL
Pafients  Aged Care Gare
Inc!
Mental Health

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Services Supported by Health Service Agresment
Employee Expenses 17,144 10,421 1,298 1,461 30,324
Non Salary Labour Costs 43t ¢ ] ) 431
Supplies and Consumables 1,371 537 83 3 1,994
Other Expenses from Conlinuing Operations 1,744 2120 1% 209 4,271
Total Expenses from Services Supported by
Health Servicas Agreement 20,681 13,078 1,519 1,732 37,020
Services Suppotted by Hospltal and Community Initiatives
Employee Expanses ¢ 0 ] 1,784 1,784
Supplies and Consumables 0 0 0 124 124
Other Expenses from Confinuing Operations { 0 0 140 140
Total Expense from Services Supported by
Hospital and Community initiatives ] 0 0 2,047 2,047
Expenditure using Gapltal Purpose Income
Other Expenses 0 ¢ 0 30 301
Total Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income H 0 0 301 301
Dapreciation {refer nota 4) 0 0 ] 3,958 3,956
Finance Costs (refer note §) 0 0 Q 4 4
Total Expenditure from Seyvices supporfed
by Health Services Agresment and hy Hospital
and Community Initlatives 0 0 0 3,960 3,960
TOTAL EXPENSES 20,691 13,078 1,519 8,040 43,328
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NOTE 3h: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES BY INTERNALLY MANAGED AND RESTRICTED SPECGIAL

PURPOSE FUNDS FOR SERVICES SUPPORTED BY HOSPITAL AND COMMUNITY INITIATIVES 214 2013
$000 $000
Commercial Activifies
Calering 0 923
Laundry 392 531
Caleleria 213 0
Property Expenses 34 G
Olher 1,112 196
TOTAL ' 1,761 1,661
NOTE 4: DEPRECIATION 2014 2013
$oo $000
Depreciation
Buildings 3270 3,303
Plant and Equipment 589 532
Loddon Matles Rural Heallh Afliance 0 11
Mator Vehicles 108 110
TOTAL DEPREGIATION 3,067 3,956
NOTE 5: FINANCE COSTS 2014 2013
$000 $'000
Interest on Short Term Borrowings 4 4
Flnance Charges on Finance Leases 21 0
TOTAL FINANCE COSTS 25 4

NOTE 6: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash assels includes cash on hand and
In banks, and short-term deposits which are readily converiible to cash on hand, and are

subject to an Insignificant risk of change I valus, net of outsianding bank overdratts, 2014 2043
$1000 $000
Cash on Hand 4 4
Cash at Bank 1,763 2645
Daposits at call 634 0
Shoart ierm money market 34831 Y
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,232 2,649
Represented by:
Gash Tor Haalth Service Operations (as per cash flow statement) {1,127) 331
Cash for Monfes Held in Trust 6,975 2,281
Cash for Loddon Mallee Ritrat Health Allfance 384 37
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,232 2,649
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NOTE 7: RECEIVABLES 2014 2013
$000 $000
CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Deblors 433 544
Patient Fees 350 464
Accrued Investment Income 25 41
Accrued Revente 37 #
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Allianve Recelvables 7 170
Less Aliowance for Doubtful Debls
- Patlent Fess 0 {2
- Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance doubtful debts 1) 0
851 1,298
Statatory
GST Recelvable 106 146
Loddon Malles Rural Heallh Alliance GST Recelvable 9 7
Acerued Income - Commonwealth Aged Cage Funding 0 42
Accrued Revenus - Dapariment of Heallh 24 0
136 195
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 987 1,493
NON CURRENT
Statutory
Long Service Leave - Depariment of Health 465 93/
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEVABLES 455 937
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 1,442 2428
{a) Movement In Allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at beglaning of year {2) 10
Increasel{decrease) in allowance recognlsed in profit or loss 1 (12}
Balange af end of year {1} (2)

{b) Ageing analysts of contractual receivables

Please refer to note 18{b} for the ageing analysts of contraciual receivables.

{c) Nature and extent of risk atising from contractual receivables
Please refer to note 18(b) for the nalure and extent of credit risk arsing from contractual receivables.
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NOTE 8: INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANGCIAL ASSETS Operating Fund Tolal
2014 2013 2014 2013
CURRENT $000 $'000 §o00 $'000
Loans and receivables
Australian Dollar Term Deposits > 3 months 0 2,813 0 2813
Avallahle for sale
Australian Listed Equity Securliies 1.961 2,563 1,961 2,553
TOTAL CURRENT 1,981 5,366 1,961 5,366
TOTAL 1,861 5,366 1,961 5,366
Represented by:
Health Service Investments 0 0 i 0
Loddon Mallea Rural Health Alllance Investments 0 243 0 243
Monies Held In Trust
- Accammodation Bonds (Refundable Enfrance Fees) 1,961 5,124 1,661 5124
TOTAL 1,961 5,366 1,961 5,366
{h) Ageing analysis of ofher invesiments and financial assets
Please refer o note 18{b) for the agelng analysls of Investments and olher financial assels.
{¢) Nafure and extent of risk arlsing from investiments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 18{h) for the nalure and exlent of credlt risk aifsing from investmenis and other financiat assels,
NOTE 8: INVENTORIES 2014 2013
$000 $000
CURRENT
Pharmaceulicals - at cost 38 35
Catating Supplies - at cost 32 23
Housekeeping Suppliss - at cost 1 0
Medical and Surgical Lines - af cost 69 92
Administration Stores - at cost & 0
TOTAL INVENTORIES 145 150
inventories held by the Health Service are held for short periods of time with regular tamover, Thereis no matenal loss of
senvice potentlat in Inventories held at the end of the year,
HOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 2014 2013
$000 $000
CURRENT
Prepayments 46 5
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alfiance Prepayments 15 15
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS &i 66
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NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2014 2013
$'000 $000
Land
-Land at Falr Value 3319 3,391
Total Land 3,319 3,391
Bulldings .
- Buildings Undler Conslruction at cost 0 2,193
- Buildings at cost 0 658
L ess Accumulated Depreciation 0 2%
0 632
- Buildings at Falr Value 42,987 110,806
Less Accumulaled Pepreciation 0 83,501
42,987 27,304
Tofal Bulldings 42,987 30,129
Plant and Equipment
- Plant & Equipment Under Construciion at cost 242 125
- Plant & Equipment Loddon Malles Rural Health Alliance 38 g
- Plant and Equlpment at fair value 7612 8,674
Less Accumulated Daprediafion 4,467 3,962
Total Plant and Equipment 3,395 2,847
Motor Vehicles
- Mator Vehicles at fair value 1,413 1,146
Less Accumulated Depraciation 601 541
Total Motor Vehicles 612 608
TOTAL 50,213 38972
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NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Reconcifiatlons of the carrying amounts of each cfass of asset af the beginning and end of the previous and current
financial year is sef out below,

Land Bulldings Plant & Motor Total

Equipment  Vehicles

$'600 3000 $000 $000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 2012 3,301 31,200 2,308 750 37,659
Additions 0 2,223 1,061 114 3,398
Loddon Mallee Health Allianca 0 ¢ 20 0 2
Dlsposals 0 ¢ ] (148) (148)
Depreciation {nole 4) 0 {3,303 (534) {110) (3.946)
Balanee at 30 June 2013 3391 30,120 2858 606 36,983
Addltions 0 6,644 1,126 64 7,834
Disposals 0 0 0 (50) (6C}
{Depreciatlon (note 4} 0 (3,270} (689} {108} (3,967)
Revaluation (72} 9484 ¢ ] 412
Balance af 30 June 2014 3,319 42987 3,395 512 50,213

Land and buildings caried at valuation

Anindepandent valuation of the Hospifal's (and and bulldings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the
land and bulldings. The valuation, which conforms to Austeallan Vatuatlon Standards, was defermined by reference to the amounts for which
assels could be exchanged betwesn knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent

assessinents.

The effeciive date of the valuation is 30 Juns 2014,

Plant and equipment af fair value
A valuaticn of Gastlemaine Health's plant and equipment was undertaken my managemant {o delermine the falr value of the plant

and equipment, The effective date of this valuation is 30 June 2014.

{c} Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2014

aﬁqﬂ??ﬁs Fair value meastirement at end of
n reporting period using:
at 30 June

W44 level 10 Leval2®  level3©®

Land at fair value
Total of fand at falr value 3,319 - 2033 1,206

Buildings a4 fair value
Total of bufldings at fair value 42,987 - 736 42,251

Plant and equipment at falr value
Plant equipment and vehlcles at falr value

~ Vehicles {ft} 512 - - 512
- Plant and cauipment 3,395 ~ - 3,395
Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value 3,907 - - 3,007

0,213 - 2,769 A7,444 3z
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NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Gontinued)

Note
® Classified in accordance wilh the fair value hlerarchy, see Note 1

®yehicles are categorised to Level 3 assets If the depreciated replacement cost fs used In estimating the falr value. However,
enfiies should consull with independent valiers In determining whether a market approach is apprapriate for vehicles with an
aclive resale markel avaifable. If yes, a Leve! 2 cafegorisation for such vehicles would be appropriate.

There hava baen no transfers between levels during the period,

Non-speclalised land, non-specialised buildings and adwork

ion-speclalised tand, non-spedlalised bulldings and arfworks are valued using the market approaci. Under this valuation melhod, the
assels ate compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are consldered to have nominal or no added
improvement value.

Fer non-specialised land and non-spacialised buildings, an independent valuatlon was performed by independent valuers, Countrywide
Valuers, io defermnine the fair value using the market approach. Valuation of the assels was defermined by analysing comparable sales
and allowing for share, slze, topography, lecation and other relevant factors specific io the asset baing valued. Ar appropriate rafe per
square metie has been appfied to Ihe subject assel. The effective date of the valuatlon Is 30 June 2014

For artwork, valuation of the asseds Is delermined by a comparizon to similar examples of the ariists wark in existenca throughout Australiz
and research on price paid for similer examples offered at auction or throtgh arl galleries in recent yaars,

To the exient that non-specialised fand, non-specialised bulfdings and arbworks do not contaln significant, unobservable adjustments,
these assals are classified as Level 2 under the market approach.

Speclalised land and specialised bulldings

The market approach is also used for specialised land and spectalised buildings aithough is adjusted for the community service obligation
{CSO) do reflect the spedialised nature of the assets being valued. Specalised assels contain significant, unobsarvable adjusiments;
therefore these assels are classified as Level 3 under the markef basad direct comparigon approach.

The CSO adjustment Is a reflection of the valuer's assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is
also sgually applicable to markef participants, This approach Is In light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value
measurement, and takes Into account the use of the asset that is physically possihle, legally permlssible and financlally feasible. As
adjustments of G8O are consldered as significant uncbservable Inputs, specialised land would be classilied as Lovel 3 assels.

For the health services, the depreciated replasemant cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the
associaled depreciation, As depreciation adjustments are consldered as significant and unabservable inputs In nalure, speclatised
buildings are classified as Level 3 for falr valua measurements.

An independent valuation of the Health Service's speclalised fand and speclalised buildings was parformed by the Valuer-General Victora.,
The valuation was parformed uslag the market approach adjusted for CSO, The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014,

Vehicles

Castlemaine Heallh acquires new vehicles and af limes disposes of them befare completion of thelr aconomic life. The process of
acquision, use and disposat In the market is managed by Casliomaine Health who sef relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the
censumption of the veficles. As a result, the falr valus of vehicles does not differ matedally from the carrylng value {depreciated cost).
Plant and equipment

Piant and equipment is held at cerrying value (depreciatad ¢ost), When plant and equipment is speclalised in use, such that it Is rarely sold
ofher than as parl of a going congern, the depreclated replacement cost is used to eslimale the falr value, Unless there |s market evidence
that current replacement costs are significantly different from the eriginal acquisition cost, it is considered uniikely that depreciated
replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying value,

There were no changes In valualion lechniques throughout the perlod to 30 June 2014,
For all assets measured at falr valug, the current use is considared the highest and bast uss, 33
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NOTE 41: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {Continued)
{d} Recongillation of Level 3 fair value

Land Buildings|  Plant and Motaor Total

Equipment]  Vehlcles

$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Opening Balance 1,937 26,803 2,858 606 31,904
Addldlons 0 6,278 1,126 64 6,468
Transfers In {oul) of Level 3 a 0 0 0 0
Gains or fosses recognised in net result
- Depreciation 0 {3,220) (589) {108} (3,926)
- Galn / {Loss) on Sale of Non-Financial Assets ¢ 0 ] {50} {50}
ltems recognised In other comprehensive Income
- Revaluation {661) 13,609 0 0 13,048
Closing Balance 1,286 42951 3,395 512 47 444

Classified In accordance with the fair value hierarchy as set outin Note 1(b).

There have been no transfers belween lovels during the period,
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30 June 2014

NOTE 11: BROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Gontlnued)

(e} Description of significant untobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations

2014

Vatuation technique {i)

Significant unobservable
inputs (i}

Range
{walghlad
average) (i}

Sensitivity of fair value
meastirement 10 changes
n stgniflcant
unobservable inpufs

Specialised Land

Markel Approach

Community Senvice
Obligalion (C8Q} adjustment

$20/m?

CSC
AdJusiment

20%8

A significand increass or
decrease In lhe CSO
adjustment would result
In a slgnflcantly lower
(higher) fair value

Specialised Bulldings

Depreciated replacement
cost

Direct cost per square metre

Useful life of specialised
buildings

$610im%"
$1,97 1w’

Useful life 25
- 8b yoars

A slgnificant Increase or
decrease in direct cost
per square metie
adjustment wauld result
in a slgnificantly higher ar
fower fair value,

A significani Increase or
decrease In the
estimated useful life of
the asset would sesult In
a significantly higher or
lowar valuation,

Piant and equipment at falr value

Dapraciated replacement
cosl

Cost per unit

Useful fife of PPE

$630 -
$143,866

3-15 years

A slgnificant increase or
decrease in the cost per
unit would rasullin a
significanly higher or
tower fafr value.

A slgnificant increass or
decrease In the
estimated usefui fife of
{ha assat woutld result in
a significantly higher or
lower vafualion,

Vehicles

Depreciated raplacemant
cost

Cost per unit

Useful life of vehicles

$6|920 -
$80,572

8 years

A significant increass or
decrease In the cost per
unlt would resultin a
significantly higher or
lower falr value.

A signiflcant incraase or
decrease in the
estimated useful life of
the asset would result in
asigniticantly higher or
lower valuation.

(i Hlustrations on the valuation lechniques, significant unobservable inputs and the relaled quantitative range of those Inputs are Indicallve and should
not ba direclly used without consultalion with entittes' independant valuor,
(it} CSO adjustment of 20% was applied by the Valuer to reduce the market approach value for crown fand of 10 - 16 Odgers Rd {main Hospital site)
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NOTE 12: PAYABLES 2014 2013
$000 $000
CURRENT
Confractual
Trade Creditors 825 981
{oddon Malles Rusal Health Aliance Payables 48 48
Accrued Expenses - Other 1,247 784
2124 1,810
Statutory
(ST Payable 40 ]
FBT Payable 13 0
Department of Health 350 398
Other Amounts payable fo Governtants and Agencies 34 0
TOTAL PAYABLES 2558 2,206
{a) Maturity analysls of payables
Flease refer to Note 18c for the ageing analysis of contractual payables.
{b} Nature and extent of risk arising from payables
Plaase refer to note 18¢ for the nalure and extent of risks arising from confractual payables,
NOTE 13: PROVISIGNS 2014 2013
$000 $000
Current Provistons
Employee Benelfits ([}
Annual Leave :
-unconditional and expacted to be setlled within 12 months () 2074 1,837
-uncondifonal and expected to be seflled after 12 months (i) 338 299
Long Service Leave
-uncenditional and expacted to be setlled within 12 months (i) R¥gY 326
-unconditional and expected to be setlled after 12 monihs (i) 2777 3,067
Acered Days Of
-uncanditional and expacted lo be setlled within 12 menths (fi) 83 9
Acerded Satarfes and Wages
-unconditional and expacted to be setfed within 12 months (i) 1,420 1,385
7.071 7,008
Provistons related to employes benelit on-costs (j}
- uncondifional and expected fo be settled within 12 monlhs (nominal vaite) (fi) 47 471
- uncondtilonal and expected to be sellled after 12 months {present value) (i) 42 328
. 459 799
Total Current Provisions 7,530 7,807
Non-Gurrent Provisions
Lang Service Leave 1,027 862
Long Service Leave related o employee benefit on-costs 159 139
Total Non-Carrent Provisions 1,186 1,020
Total Provisions 8,716 8,828
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NGTE 13: PROVISIONS (Continued)

{a) Employea Benefits and Related On-Costs

Current Employee Benefits and related an-costs
Uneondltional Long Service Leave Enilflements

Annual Leave Enfitlemenis
Accrued Salarles and Wages
Accrued Days Off

Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Congitional Long Service Leave Enflitlements it}

Total Empleyee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Nofes:

{it Provislons for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual feave and long service leave accrued by employees, not including on-coss.

{fl) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts.

(iif) The amonnts disclosad are discotnted fo present valies,

{b} Movements In provisions

Movement in Long Service Leave
Balance at start of year

Provision made during the year

- Revaluations

- Expense recognising Employee Service
Seitlement rmade durlng the year

Balance at end of year

NOTE 14; SUPERANNUATION

Employess of lhe Healih Service are enlilled to receive superannuation benefits and the Heallh Service conlrbutes fo both defined

2014 2013
$000 $000
3315 3,393
2712 2,935
1,419 1,385
83 94
1,185 1,020
8,716 8,828
2014 2013
$000 $000
4414 4218
(11) (8
646 853
(547) (650)
4502 4414

beneflt and defined confribution plans. The defined benefit plan{s) provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.

The Heaith Service does nol recognise any defined banefit fability In respact of the ptan{s) because the entily has no legal or constructive '
ohligation to pay fuluse benefits relating {o lts employees; its only alfigation is to pay stiperannuation coniributions as they fall due. The

Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State's defined bensfits liabifilies in its disclosure for administered terms,

However superannualion conlributions paid or payable for the reporiing period are included as part of employea beneflts in the

comprehensive operating slatement of the Health Service. The name, details and amounts expensed In relatlon to the major employes

supefannuation funds and conlributions made by the Health Sarvics are as follows:

Paid Contributions for | Oulstanding Contrdhutions
Fund the Year at Year End
2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $°00D $'000 $000
Dsfined Benefit Fians: Health Super 98 141 0
Defined Contribullon Plans; Health Super 1,992 1,821 0
HESTA 572 512 0
Other ] 106 {
Total 2,663 2,680 0
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NOTE 15: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 2014 2013
$600 $000
CURRENT
Monies Held in Trust®
- Patient Monles Held in Trust 408 457
- Accommedation Bonds { Refundable Entrance Fees) 8,227 6477
- Other Monles In Trust 3 471
TOTAL CURRENT 8,938 7404
* Total Monies Hefd in Trust
Represented by the foliowing assefs:
Cash Assels {refer fo Note 6} 6,975 7,399
Investmants and other Financial Assels (refer fo Note 8) 1,981 5
TOTAL 8,936 7404
NOTE 16: EQUITY 2014 2013
$000 $000
(a) Surpluses
Properly, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus ®
Balance at beginning of the reporilg peried
- Land 2,788 2,798
- Betllcfings 20,399 20,399
- Plant and Equipment 0
Revaluation increment{Decrement)
-land (72) 0
- Buildings §,483 0
- Plant and Equlpmant 0 0
Balance at the end of the reporting period 32,698 23,187
Represented by:
-1and 116 2,788
- Buildings 29,882 20,390
- Plant and Equipment
32,508 23,187
(1} The propety, plant and equipment asset revaluation surpius arises on the revaluafion of praparly, plant and equipment.
Financlal Assefs Available-for-Sale Revaluation Surplus
Balance at beginning of the raporing perlod (48) (218)
Valuation gain / {loss) recognisad 265 170
Balanee at the end of the reporting period 217 {48}
Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Balance-at the beginning of the reporting period 10 10
Transfer to and from Restricled Specifie Purpose Surplus 0 0
Balance af the end of the reporiing period 10 10
32,825 23,149

Total Surpluses
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NOTE 16: EQUITY (Continued)
2014 2013
$000 $aco
{b) Gonftributed Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 21,202 21,202
Capital Contribution recelved from Victorfan Government 0 0
Balance at the end of the reparting period 24,202 21,202
{s) Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficits)
Balance at the baginnlng of the reporting period (15,156)  (12,488)
Transfer to and from Resticted Spedific Purpose Resorve {0 1
Nel Result for the Year 972 (2,666)
Balange at the end of the reporting period (14,483)  {15,155)
{d) Total Equity at end of {inancial year 39,844 29,196
NOTE 47: RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR TO NET CASH INFLOW f (OUTFLOW)
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2014 2013
$000 $'000
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR a72  {2,666)
Non-cash movements
Depraclation 3,967 3,946
Share of Net Result from Jolnt Veniures 274 (102}
Movements inchided in investing and financing activities
Nt (Galn)fLoss from Disposal of Plant and Equipment 50 39
Movemants in assets and llabilitles
Change I operaling assets & llabilities
{increasa)iDacrease In Rocslvables 827 179
{Increase}fDectaase In Prepayments § 48
{Increase)Decrease In Inventorles 5 79
Increasef{Decrease] In Payables 362 843
Incraasel{Decreass) In Provisions (113 391
NET CASH INFLOW { {OUTFLOW} FRON OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,340 2,754

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{2) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Casllamaine Health's principat financial nsfruments comprise of:
- Cash Assels

- Tarm Deposils

- Racelvables (excluding statufory recelvables)

- Payables {exchding stafutory payables)

- Accommodation Bonds

Dedalls of the significant accourding policles and metheds adopted, including the criterfa for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basls on which income and expenses are fecognised, with respect fo each ¢lass of financial asset, financial liability and equity

Instrumsnt are disclosed In note 1 {o the financlal statements,

The Health Service’s maln financial risks include credi risk, llquidily risk and interest rata risk, The Health Service manages thesa

finangial risks in accordance with its financial risk management policy.

The Haalth Service uses different methods lo measure and manage the different risks o which It is exposed. Pdmary responsibillty for the
Idantiflcation and management of financial visks resls with the finandial risk manageswent committes of the Health Service,

The mafn purposs in holding financial instrements is {o prudentially manags Castlemalne Heallh's finandial tisk

within the goverament polioy paramelers,
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NOTE 18: FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
{a} Financlal risk management objecfives amd policies (continued)
Gafegorisation of financial instruments

Contractual Cenlractual  Confractual

Financial Financial  Financial

Assels - Assefs - Liabilifies at

Loans and Availeble  Amoriised Total

Receivables For Sale Cost
2014 $'000 $000 $000 $000
Confractual Financial Assets
Cash and cash equlvalents 6,232 0 0 6,232
Loans and Recelvables 851 0 0 851
Availabla for Sale 0 1,964 ] 1,061
Total Financial Assels (i) 7,083 1,961 0 8,044
Financial Liabllities
Al amortised cost 0 0 11,057 11,067
Tolat Financial Liabllities(if) 0 0 11,057 11,057

Gategorisation of financlal instruments

Contraciual Contractral  Contractual

Financlaf Financlal  Flnanclal

Assels - Assets - Liabillifes at

Loans and Avallable  Amorlised Tota!

Recelvables ForSale © Cost
2013 $000 $'000 $000 $000
Gontractual Financial Assets
Cash and cush equivalents 2,649 ¢ 0 2,649
Loants and Recelvables 1,298 0 ] 1,298
Avallable for Sale g 5,366 0 5,360
Tote! Financial Assels {i) 3947 5,368 0 8,313
Fihanclal Liahllities
At amortlsed cost 0 ] 9,214 9,214
Totat Financlal Liabilitiss{il) G 0 9,214 9,214

{1} The tatal amount of financial assels disclosed hare excludes slatutory veceivables {f.e. GST input tax credit receivable)
{ii} The total amount of financial Fabitifies disclosed here excludes stafutory payables (e, Taxes payable)

Net holding gain/(less) on financlal instruments by category

Met holding  Met holding
gainflloss)  gain/{loss)

2014 2013
$000 000
Financial Assels
Cash and cash aquivalenis(i) 441 517
Total Financial Assets 441 517
Financial Liabliities
At amorlised cost (i} 25 4
Total Financial Liabilifles 95 :

{i} For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and avaltable-for-aale financial assets, tha net galn ar loss Is calcutated by taking the
intarest revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revalualion of the financlal assets, and minus any impalrment

recognisad in the netresult; and

{li} For financial liablliles measured at amortised cost, the net gain or foss is calculated by taking the Interast expense, plus or mints foreign
exchange gains or losses arising from the revaluation of financial liabilifies measured &l amortised cost.
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NOTE 46: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(h) Credit Rlsk
Ciedit risk arlses from the confractual financlal assats of the Health Service, which comprise ¢ash and deposits, non-slatutory recelvables

and available for sale confraciual financlal assels. Tha Heallh Service's exposurs 1o credit isk arises from the polential defaut of a
counter party on their confractuaf obligations resulting in financial loss fo the Health Service. Credil risk is measured at fair value and Is

monitored on a regular basts.,

Cradit risk associated wilh the Heallh Service's contractua) financla assels is minimal hecause the maln debtor is the Viclorian Government,
For deblors other than the Govamment, It Is the Health Service's policy fo only deal with enlilies with high credit ratings of a minimum Triple-B
raling and to obtain sufficlent calfateral or credit enhancements, whare appropriate.

I additlon, the Healih Service does not engage in hedging for s confractuat financlal assets and mainly obtains confraciuat financtal assels
{hat are on fixed interest, excapl for cash assets, which are mainly cash at hank, Aswith the policy for deblors, the Health Service's policy Is
{o only deal with banks with high credit raings.

Provision of impairment for contraclual financial assels is recognlsed when there is objecive evidence that fhe Health Service will not be able
to cotlect a receivable. Obloctive evidence Includes financial difficuftles of the deblor, default payments, debis which are mare [han 60 days
overdue, and changes In deblor credit railngs.

Excepl as olherwise detalled In the following table, the carrying amotnt of confractual financial assets recorded int ihe financla! statements, net of any
allowances for losses, reprasents Castiemaine Health's maximum exposure o cradit risk without taking account of he value of any collateral obtained.

Credit quality of contractual financial assefs that are neither past duae nor impaired

Fihaneial Other Total
Institutions| {min BBB
(AAAcredit]  credit
rafing) rafing
204 $000 $000 $000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 6,232 6,232
Receivebles”
- Trade Deblors 0 851 851
Other Financial Assels
- Equily Securlties 0 1,661 1,861
Total Financial Assets 9,044 9,044
2013
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents ) 0f 2,649 2,649
Receivables?
- Trade Deblors G 1,298} 1,298
Other Financial Assets
- Equlty Securifles Ol 2,653 2,553
- Term Deposi(s 0 2,813 2,813
Total Financla! Assels 0] 9,313 9,313

{i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude stalulory amouss (.. amounis owing from Victorian Government and GST
Input tax credit recoverable), 41
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NOTE 48: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continusd)
{b) Credit Risk {continued)
Ageing analysis of financlal assets as at 30 June
Past Due But Not Impalred Impalred
Carrying | Mot Past | less than 1-3 3 Months 1-5 Financiat
Amount [due andnol{ 1 Month Months -1 Year Yoars Assels
Impalred

2014 $'600 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 000
Financlal Assets
Gash and Cash Equivalents 6,232 8,232 8 0 0 0 0
Recalvables {f)
- Trade Debtors 851 71 552 77 15 it 0
Other Financial Assels
- Bquity Securifies 1,961 1,981 0 0 0 0 0
Total Financlal Assets 9,044 8,264 52 77 151 ] 0
2013
Financlal Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,649 2,549 0 0 0 0 0
Recelvables {1}
- Trade Debtors 1,298 767 218 181 109 3 0
Qther Financlat Assels
- Equity Securifies 2,563 2,563
- Term Deposit 2813 2,813 0 0 i 0 a
Total Financlal Assets 9,313 8,802 218 181 109 3 0
{i) Agelng analysls of financial assets excludes the types of statutory financiel assefs §.e. GST input tax credil)
Contractoal financiai assels that are neither past due ar impaired
Thare are no material financial assets which are Individuatly defermined to be impaired. Currently the Health Service does not hold
any collateral as securty nor credit enhancaments relating to lis inancial assels,
Thera are ro financial assels that have had thelr torms renegofiated sa as to prevent them frem being past due or impaired, and they
are stated at thelr careying amounts as Indlcated, The ageing analysls table above discioses the ageing only of contractual financial
assels that are past due but nof impairad,
{c} Liquidily Risk .
Liguidily risk is the tisk that the Health Sesvice would be unable to meet its financlal obligations as and when they fall dus. The
Heatth Sevices operates under the Government's falr payments policy of seting financial obligations withln 30 days and in the
avent of a dispute, making payments withln 30 days from the date of resoluticn,
The Health Service’s maximum exposure to liguidily risk is the carrying amounts of financial lisbiliies as disclosed In the face
of the balance sheet. The Health Senvice manages its liquidity risk as foflows:
- Monltorlag cashflows and ensuring that maximum funds are avallable for investment and payment of financlal iabiities,
Thare has been no significant change In the Health Service's exposure, or Il's ebjectives, policles and processes for managing
liguidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from previous reporling pesiods.
The following table discloses the contractual malurity analysis for Castlemalne Healfh's financial liabilities. For inferest ratos
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CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2014
NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Confinued)
Mafurity analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June
Maturily Dates
l.ess than 1-3 3 Months 1-5
Carrying | Nominal 1 Month Months -1 Year Years
Amount Amounl
2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Financial Liakilities
Payables 2,424 2121 2121 O 0 0
Other Flnanclal Liabilities (f)
- Accommodation Bonds 8,227 8,227 0 L] 8,227 0
- Other 709 709] 4] ] 709
Total Financial Liabliitles 11,057 11,067 2,421 0 8,836 ]
2013
Financial Liabilities
Payables 1,810 1,8104 1,810 0 0 0
Other Financtal Lieblilfles {i)
- Accommodalion Bends 6477 6ATT 0 b 6477 [)I
~ Other 827 927 0 0 927 0
Total Financlal Liabilities 9,214 9,214 1,810 i 7,404 0

{i) Agelng analysis of financial liabiiles excludes the types of stalutery finarcial iabiliies (i.e. GST payable)

{d) Market Risk

Castlemains Hoalth's exposures to market risk are primarily through Inferest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to
forelgn cureancy and other price fisks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are

disclosed in the paragraphs beiow.

Currency Risk

Castlemaine Health is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk tbrough Hs payables refating to purchases of supplies
and consumables from ovarseas. This Is because of a limiled amount of purchases denominated in foreign currencias

and a short imeframe between commitiment and sefflemsnt,

Interest Rafe Risk

Exposure fo interest rate risk right arlse primarily through Castiemaine Health's interest bearlng liabliltes. Minimlsation of rlsk is achieved
by mainly undertaking fixed rale or non-Interest bearing financlal Instraments. For finanial fiabilities, the Heallih Service mainly underake

financial Gabilities with relalively even maturity profiles.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the fuiure cash flows of a financial instrummant will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rates.

The Healih Service has minimal exposure (o cash flow Interest rate risks through its cash and deposlls, term deposits and

bank overdrafts that are at flaating rale.

The Mealth Service manages this risk by mainiy undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financlal Instruments with relatively even
maturity profiles, with only Inslgnificant amounts of financial instruments al floating rate. Management has concludsd for cash at bank
and bank overdraft, as financial assels that can be left at floaling rate without necessarlly exposing the Health Service to significant

bad risk, management monlfors movements i interest rates on a daily hasls,

Gthar Price Risk

The Health Service is exposed to price tisk In respect of fee for service and confract services which are open o market compelilon,
There has been no significant change In the Heatlh Service's exposure, or it's objectives, palicies and processes for managlng rlsk
or the metheds used to measure the risk from the previous seporting perlod.
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30 June 2014

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June

Welgnted | Carrying Inferest Rale Exposure

Average { Amount Non -

Effective Fixed Interest  Varlable Interest

Inferest Rals Inferesi Rate  Beardng

2014 Rata (%) | $000 $000 $000 $000
Flnanclal Assefs
Cash and Cash Equivalents 230 6,232 0 6,228 4
Recalvables ()
- Trade Debtors 851 0 0 851
Other Financlal Assels
- Equity Securities 2.80 1,961 0 1,961 0]
Total Financial Assets 9,044 0 8,184 B85
Financial Liabilities
Payables (i} 244 i 0 212
Gther Financial Liablllties
- Accommodalion Bonds 8,227 0 4] 8,227
- Other Liahilities 709] 0 0 709
Total Financial Liabllities 11,057, i] 0 11,067

() The carrylng amounts disclosed hera exclude statutory amounts {e.g. amoun

input tex credit recoverable}.

ts owing from Victorian Govermment and GST
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30 June 2014

NOTE 18; FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Confinued}
{d} Market Risk {Continued)
Inferest Rate Exposure of Financlal Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June

Welghted | Carrylng Interest Rate Expostire

Average | Amount Non -

Effective Fixed Interest  Variable Interest

Interest Rate inferest Rate  Bearing

2013 Rate (%) | $000 $'000 $000 $000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2485 26491 0 2,645 4
Racelvalses (i}
- Trade Bebfors 1,298 0 0 1,298
Other Financial Assels
~ Term Daposit 412 2,813 2813 0 0
- Equity Securities 7.13 2,563 0 2553 0
Total Financial Assels 9,313] 2813 5,198 1,302
Financial Llahliities
Payables (i) 1,810} 0 ] 1,810
Olher Financlal Liabilities
« Accommodation Bonds 6,477 ] 0 6477
« Other Liabilities 927 0 ] 027
Total Financial Liabilifies 9,214 0 0 0,214
{l) The carrying amount must exclude types of slatutory financlal assets and fiabilities (i, GST Input tax credit and GST payable)

Sonsitivity Disclosure Analysis

Taking Info accouat past performance, future expectalions, economic foresasts, and management's knowledge
and experence of the financial marksts, the Casflemaine Health belleves the following movements are teasonably possible’
over (he next 12 months (base rates are sourced from the Reserve Bank of Austrafia).

- A shift of +1% and 1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 3.5%;

- A paralie} shift of +1% and -1% In inflation rate from year-end rates of 2%; and
- A movement of 15% up and dowa (2012 15%) for the lop ASX 200 Index.

The following table discloses the impact on net operaling result and equity for aach category of interest bearing financial Instrament
held by Caslemaine Health al year end as presented to key management personns}, If changes in the relevant sisk ocour.

Caxryng Inlerast Rate Risk
Amount -1% +1%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equlvatents 6,232 (62) {6%) 62 62
Recoivables
- Trade Debtors 851 0 0 0 0
Olher Financlal Assets
- Equity Securitles 1,961 (20} 20 20 20
Financial Liabifities
Payables 242 ] G 0 0
Other Financlal Liabllities
- Accommodation Bonds 8,227 0 ] ] 0
- Other Liabliitles 709 Q0 0 0 0
(62) (82) 82 82
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuad)
{d) Market Risk (Continucd)

Carrylng Interest Rate Risk
Amound -1% +1%
Profit Equily Profit Equity
2013 $000 $0600 $000 $000 $'000
Finaneial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,648 (26} {26} 26 26
Receivables
- Trade Deblars 1,268 ) 0 0 ¢
Ciher Financial Assets
- Term Deposit 2813 (28) {28) 28 28
- Equity Securities 2,553 (26) {26} 26 26
Financial Liabilities
Payables ' 1,810 0 0 0 0
Other Financlal Lizblllties
- Accommaodation Bonds 6,477 0 0 0 ]
- Olher Liabliilies 027 0 0 0 0
{80} {80) 80 80

{e) Fair Value

The fair values and net fair values of financial lnstrument assets and fiabilifies are determined as follows:
+ Level 1 -1he fair valua of financial inslrument with standard ferms and candifions and traded in active fiquid markels are delermined

with reference lo quoted markel prices,

« Level 2 - the falr value |s determined using inputs other than quoled prices thal are observable for the financial asset or liabilily, either

directiy or indireclly; and
» Level 3 - the falr value Is dotermined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
using unobservable marked inputs.

based on discounted cash flow analysis

The Health Service considers that the carrying amount of financial stalements to be a falr approximaflon of thelr falr values, becatse of the

short-derm nature of the financial instruments and the expeactalion that ey will be pald In full.
The following {akle shows that the fair values of most of the contraciual financia! assels and |

Compatison befwaen carrying amount and fair value

fabilities are ihe same as lhe canrying amounts.

Carrying  |Fair Value | Carsying [Falr Value
Amount Amount
2014 2014 2013 2013
$'000 5600 $000 $000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,232 6,232 2649 2,649
Recaivables (i)
- Trade Deblors 851 851 1,208 1,298
Other Financlal Asssis
-Term Deposits 0 0 2813 2,813
-Equity Securifles 1,861 1,961 2553 2,053
Total Financlal Assets 9,044 9,044 9,313 9,313
Financial Liabilifies ]
Payahies 2,121 2,121 1816 1,810
Other Financiat Liabllilies {i}
-Accommodation Bonds 8,227 8,227 6477 6,477
-Other Liabilities 709 7080 927 027
Total Financlal Liabilities 11,057 11,057 9,214 9,214

(i} The canying amount excludes types of statutory financlal assels and lizhilifies {i.. GSY Iny

put tax credit and GST payable).
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CASTLEMAINE HEALTH
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2014

NOTE 19: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

Casliemaine Health has received a State Govarnment budgeted commitment to fund $10 Million of re-davelopment of the main hespital bullding,
including a second operating theatre and re-modelfed maln enfrance. As at 30 June 2014 the Project has finished and funding fully expended.

2014 2013
$000 $'000
Capital Expenditure Cominltments
Payable
Land and Bulldings 0 7,800
Plant and Equlpment 0 449
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments i 8,240
Commitments payable
Land and Bulldings
Less than 1 year 0 6,800
Longer than 1 year but not longar than 5 years c 1,000
Tolat 1] 7,800
Flant and Equipment
Less than 1 year 0 440
Longer than 1 yaar bui not longer than 5 years 0 0
Total 0 440
Total capiial expenditure commitments 0 8,240

NOTE 20: CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no known contingent assets or labllitles for Castlemaine Health as at the date of this report.
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30 June 2014
NOTE 21: OPERATING SEGMENTS .
RAG OTHER TOTAL

2014 2013 2014 2043 2014 2013

$'000 §000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
REVENUE
External Segment Revenue 13,251 11,612 23915 20,872 37,166 32,384
Unallocated Revenues 0 ¢ 1,764 7,762 1,764 7,762
Total Revenue 13,261 11,592 25,679 28,634 38,930 40,145
EXPENSES |
External Segment Expenses 8,794y  {13,078) (14,876) {20691) {24670)  (33,769)
internal Segment Expanses (5,427} {5,606) {11,033)
Unallocated Expense {5,649) {9,556) {5,649} {9,556)
Total Expenses {15221}  (13,078) (28,131) 30,247y (41,353) (43,325}
Net Result from ordinary activities {1,970} {1,566} {452} (1,613 {2,422) {3,180}
Interest Expense 0 0 H e 0 4
Interest Income 441 517 4 0 441 517
Net Result for Year {1,520) {1,049) {452) {1,617} {1,981) {2,666}
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assels 32,304 21,156 ] 0 32,394 21,166
Unaliocated Assels 6 0 27,660 26,478 27,6560 26478
Total Assels 32,304 21,156 27,660 26,478 60,054 47,634
Segmen Llabllitles 8,836 7,546 0 0 8,836 7,546
Unalfocated Liabilifies 0 ] 11,274 10,882 11,274 10,802
Total Liabilitios 8,936 7,546 11,274 10,892 20,210 18,438
Acquisiton of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets { 4] 7,727 3,398 7727 3,308
Depreciation expense 0 0 3,956 3,967 3.956 3967

The major productsiservices fom which the abova segments derlve revenus are!

Businass Segments

Resldential Aged Care Services {RAGS)

Acule and Sub-Acie Sarvices

Geographical Sepment

Services
Provider of residenilal aged care beds

Provider of acute and rehabfiitation beds

Castlemaing Health operatos predominantly in the Municipalilies of Mt Alexandsr & Macedon Ranges in the State of Victorla. More than
80% of revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities and segment assels relate to operations in those areas.
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NOTE 22: JOINTLY CONTROLLED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS

Cwnership Interest

Name of Entity Principal Activity 2014 2013
) % %
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alllance  Information Systems 8.13 8.24

Caslemalne Health's Interest In assets employed In the above Jofntly conirolled operations and assels is detalled below
The amounts are included in the financial statements under thelr respeclive calegories:

2014 2013
$000 $000
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 384 280
Racelvables 16 177
Other 15 18
Total Current Assets . 418 472
Non Current Asssfs
Peeperty Plant and Equipment 38 g
Total Non Current Assets 38 9
Total Assets i 463 481
Current Liabilities
Payables 64 45
Total Current Llabiiities 64 5
Total Liabliities 64 45
Net Assets 389 - 438
Casllemaine Health's Interest In revenuss and axpenses resulfing from joinfly controlled operations and assels is detalled below:
Revenues
Operaling Activities 276 329
Non-Operaling Activities 57 136
Total Revenue 333 465
Expenses
Informatfon Technology and Administralive Expenses 595 597
Depreciation 12 11
Total Expenses 607 607
He! Result (274) (142}

Commitments for Expenditure
There are no commilments for capital expendilure 2t the date of this report.

Gonfingent Liahilities and Capital GCommifments
There are no contingsncles or capital commitments.
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NOTE 23a: RESPONSIBLE PERSON DISCLOSURES

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minlster for Finance under the Financlal Management Act 1894, tha following

disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the teporting pariod.

Responsible Ministera:
The Honourable David Davis, MLC, Minlster for Heallh and Ageing
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge, MLA, Minister for Mental Heallh

Governing Boards
Mr G Sutherland
Ms L Bower

Mr | McKenzie

Dr . Fitzgerald

Mrs E Grainges

Ms M Simpson

Ms C Wallace

Ms S Fraser

Mr A Sevdalis

Accountable Officers
Mr ! Fisher

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their refevant income bands;

lncome Band

$0 - $9,999
$49,000 - $40,999
$60,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - $65,999
$69,000 - $199,999
Total Numbets

Total remungration received or due and recelvable by Responsible Persons

from the reporiing entify amounted to:

Amounts relaling to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financia) staternents of

the Depariment of Premier ane Cablnet,

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Partics

Petled

010772013 - 30i06/12014
01/07/2013 - 3040612014

01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01107/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/08/2014
010712013 - 3000612014
0110772013 - 30/06/2014
0140712013 - 300612014
01/07/2013 - 30/06/2014
01/07/2013 - 30/36/2014

010712013 - 30/06/2014

Total Remunerafion

Ms C Wallace is a Director of the Mt Alexander Shire. Net transactions with Mt Alexandsr Shire are;
Mr L Filzgerald is a Department Head at EaTrobe Unlversity Bendigo. Net transactions with LaTrobe University are;

2014 2013
No. No.
g g
0 1
0 1
] 1
1 0
10 12
180,262 184477
2004 2013
$0600 000
481 -
133 -
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NOTE 23b: EXECUTIVE OFFIGER DISGLOSURES
The numbers of axecutive officers, other than Ministers and Accauntable Officers, and their totaf remuneration
dutlng the reporiing pesicd are shown in the first two columns In the table below in thefr relevant Income bands,
The hase remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourih columns. Base remuneration Is exclusive
of bonus payments, lang-service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits,

Tota) Remuneration Base Remuneration

2014 2013 2014 2013

No. No. No. No.

$100,000 - $100,958 i 0 0 i
$110,000 - $119,999 0 0 2 0
$120,000 - $129,909 2 2 0 2
$130,000 - $139,999 0 1 0 1
$140,000 - $149,960 0 ] ¢ 0
Total number of executives 2 3 2 3
Total annualised employes equivalent (AEE) p 3 2 3

{Based on working 38 crdinary hours per week over the reporting period)
Total Remuneration

NOTE 24: EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANGE SHEET DATE

There hava besn no svants subsequent fo the reporing date which require further disclosure.

NOTE 25: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

251,645 385406 230,338 226,344

Castlemaine Health Is wholly depandant on the continued financlal support of the State Governiment and ln parlicular, the
Department of Heallh. The Deparlment of Health has provided confirmation Ehat it will continue fo provide Castlemaine Health
adequate cash fiow support to meed ils current and fulure operafional obligations as and when they fall due for a period up to September 2015,

should thls be required.

NOTE 26: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

2014 2013
$000 $000

Victorlan Auditor-General's Office
Audit or review of financial statements 23 22
23 22

51




